Public Document Pack
Argyll and Bute Council
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid

Customer Services
Executive Director: Douglas Hendry
Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT
Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604435
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD
e.mail –douglas.hendry@argyll-bute.gov.uk
23 May 2012

NOTICE OF MEETING
A meeting of the PLANNING, PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE will be
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on WEDNESDAY, 30 MAY 2012
at 10:30 AM, which you are requested to attend.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director - Customer Services

BUSINESS
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

3.

MINUTES
(a)

Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee 18 April 2012 (9.30
am) (Pages 1 - 2)

(b)

Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee 18 April 2012 (10.00
am) (Pages 3 - 4)

(c)

Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee 18 April 2012 (10.30
am) (Pages 5 - 14)

4.

CIVIC GOVERNMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 1982: PUBLIC ENTERTAINMENT
LICENCE
Report by Head of Governance and Law (to follow)

5.

M AND K MCLEOD LTD: TEMPORARY USE OF FORMER AMBULANCE DEPOT
FOR CLASS 6 (STORAGE OR DISTRIBUTION): FORMER AMBULANCE
STATION, MANSE BRAE, LOCHGILPHEAD (REF: 11/02280/PP)
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 15 - 38)

E1

6.

SCOTTISH POWER PLC: FORMATION OF A TEMPORARY CONTRACTOR'S
SITE COMPOUND: LAND TO NORTH OF CRUACHAN POWER STATION,
TAYNUILT (REF: 12/00213/PP)
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 39 - 50)

7.

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL: ERECTION OF NEW VEHICLE WORKSHOP,
WELFARE BUILDING, GLASSHOUSE AND BIKE SHELTER INCLUDING NEW
VEHICLE ENTRANCE AND ADDITIONAL PARKING: COUNCIL MAINTENANCE
DEPOT, LUSS ROAD, HELENSBURGH (REF: 12/00219/PP)
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 51 - 60)

8.

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL: INSTALLATION OF A BIOMASS BOILER
INCLUDING PLANT ROOM AND WOODCHIP STORE: ISLAY HIGH SCHOOL
AND BOWMORE PRIMARY SCHOOL, FLORA STREET, BOWMORE, ISLAY
(REF: 12/00564/PP)
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 61 - 70)

9.

TOWARD SAILING CLUB: ERECTION OF 5 KILOWATT WIND TURBINE (15
METRES HIGH TO BLADE TIP): TOWARD SAILING CLUB, TOWARD, DUNOON
(REF: 12/00663/PP)
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 71 - 84)

10.

MR AND MRS JOHN SMITH: ERECTION OF DWELLINGHOUSE,
INSTALLATION OF PRIVATE SEWAGE TREATMENT FACILITY AND
FORMATION OF NEW ACCESS: LAND NORTH WEST OF FINNART
FARMHOUSE, FEUINS ROAD, PORTINCAPLE (REF: 12/00818/PP)
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 85 - 104)

11.

NORTHERN ENERGY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED: DEVELOPMENT OF LAND
WITHOUT COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 1 OF PLANNING PERMISSION
REFERENCE 08/00309/DET - ERECTION OF A WOOD FIRED COMBINED HEAT
AND POWER PLANT AND FORMATION OF VEHICULAR ACCESS: LAND TO
NORTH OF DALINLONGART WASTE DISPOSAL SITE, SANDBANK, DUNOON
(REF: 12/00838/PP)
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 105 - 120)

12.

ENFORCEMENT UPDATE: 10/00319/ENAMEN
Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services (Pages 121 - 126)

The Committee will be asked to pass a resolution in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for items of business with an “E” on
the grounds that it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
appropriate paragraph of Part I of Schedule 7a to the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973.
The appropriate paragraph is:-

E1

Paragraph 13 Information which, if disclosed to the public, would reveal
that the authority proposes(a)
(b)

to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person; or
to make an order or direction under any enactment.

PLANNING, PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
Councillor Gordon Blair
Councillor Robin Currie
Councillor George Freeman
Councillor David Kinniburgh
Councillor Robert Macintyre
Councillor Donald MacMillan
Councillor Sandy Taylor

Contact: Fiona McCallum

Councillor Rory Colville
Councillor Mary-Jean Devon
Councillor Fred Hall
Councillor Alistair MacDougall
Councillor Robert Graham MacIntyre
Councillor Alex McNaughton
Councillor Richard Trail

Tel. No. 01546 604392

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a

MINUTES of MEETING of PLANNING, PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD
on WEDNESDAY, 18 APRIL 2012

Present:

Councillor Roderick McCuish (Chair)
Councillor Rory Colville
Councillor Gordon Chalmers
Councillor Robin Currie

Attending:

1.

Councillor Mary-Jean Devon
Councillor David Kinniburgh
Councillor Bruce Marshall

Alison Younger, Central Governance Manager
Graeme Forrester, Solicitor
Sergeant Stewart, Strathclyde Police

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were intimated from Councillors Vivien Dance, Daniel
Kelly, Neil Mackay, Donald MacMillan, Alex McNaughton and James McQueen.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None declared.

3.

CIVIC GOVERNMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 1982: APPLICATION FOR GRANT
OF TAXI DRIVER'S LICENCE (S GRACE, ALEXANDRIA)
The Chair welcomed everyone to the Hearing and asked that the participants
introduce themselves. Thereafter he outlined the procedure that would be
followed.
Mr Forrester advised that the Applicant had received notification of this Hearing
but was not in attendance. The Committee agreed to proceed with the Hearing
in the absence of the Applicant.
The Chair invited the Police to speak in support of their objection.
Police
Sergeant Stewart spoke to the terms of the letter of objection submitted by
Strathclyde Police which advised that the Chief Constable’s objection was based
on previous convictions which pertained to the Applicant. Sergeant Stewart
referred to each conviction in turn and to the circumstances surrounding each of
these convictions. He advised that it was the contention of the Chief Constable
that the Applicant was not a fit and proper person to be the holder of a taxi
licence.
Mr Forrester, having left the Hearing briefly to take a message, returned to the
Hearing and advised that he had been notified by licensing staff that a phone
message had been left by the Applicant confirming that he would not be in
attendance at the Hearing today. The Committee agreed to proceed with the
Hearing.

Page 2
The Chair then invited Members to ask the Police questions.
Members’ Questions
Councillor Colville referred to the first two convictions and asked if it was
common practice to have convictions admonished. Sergeant Stewart advised
that it was not unusual for convictions to be admonished after a period of time.
He confirmed that the Applicant was found guilty of each offence detailed in the
letter from Strathclyde Police with the exception of the offence reported to have
been carried out on 17 March 2001.
Councillor Chalmers referred to there being no mention of a conviction in respect
of racial abuse towards a police officer which had been reported to have been
carried out by the Applicant at Clydebank Police station on 21 December 2008
and asked why this was the case. Sergeant Stewart advised that it was common
practice by the Courts to drop offences against Police Officers if they have other
offences to consider.
The Chair invited Sergeant Stewart to sum up.
Summing Up
Sergeant Stewart referred to the previous convictions which pertain to the
Applicant and reaffirmed the contention of the Chief Constable that the Applicant
was not a fit and proper person to be the holder of a taxi licence.
The Chair asked Sergeant Stewart to confirm he had received a fair hearing and
he confirmed this to be the case.
Debate
Councillor Devon advised that she would be supporting the view of the Chief
Constable that the Applicant was not a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
licence.
Councillor Chalmers also agreed with this view.
Decision
It was unanimously agreed to refuse the application for grant of a taxi licence on
the grounds that the Applicant was not a fit and proper person to hold a taxi
licence.
(Reference: Report by Head of Governance and Law, submitted)

Page 3

Agenda Item 3b

MINUTES of MEETING of PLANNING, PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD
on WEDNESDAY, 18 APRIL 2012

Present:

Councillor Roderick McCuish (Chair)
Councillor Rory Colville
Councillor Gordon Chalmers
Councillor Robin Currie

Attending:

1.

Councillor Mary-Jean Devon
Councillor David Kinniburgh
Councillor Bruce Marshall

Alison Younger, Central Governance Manager
Graeme Forrester, Solicitor
Mr Heron, Applicant
Inspector Armstrong, Strathclyde Police
Sergeant Stewart, Strathclyde Police

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were intimated from Councillors Vivien Dance, Daniel
Kelly, Neil Mackay, Donald MacMillan, Alex McNaughton and James McQueen.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None declared.

3.

CIVIC GOVERNMENT (SCOTLAND) ACT 1982: APPLICATION FOR GRANT
OF TAXI DRIVER'S LICENCE (R HERON, SANDBANK)
The Chair welcomed everyone to the Hearing and asked that participants
introduce themselves. Thereafter he outlined the procedure that would be
followed.
The Chair then invited the Applicant to speak in support of his application.
Applicant
Mr Heron referred to the application form and advised that he and his wife were
not sure how to fill out the section regarding criminal convictions so he had left
this blank. He confirmed that he had been interviewed by the Police regarding
this omission and that the Police had accepted that there was no deception
intended on the basis that the copy of the driving licence submitted with the
application had clearly shown the offence. He advised that he was only guilty of
not completing the application form properly and felt that this should have been
made known to him and returned to him by licensing staff to rectify.
The Chair invited the Police to ask the Applicant questions and Inspector
Armstrong advised that he had none.
The Chair then invited the Police to speak in support of their objection.
Police

Page 4
Inspector Armstrong referred to the Applicant not declaring his previous
conviction on the application form and confirmed that the Applicant’s explanation
for this had been accepted. He advised that the driving offence occurred nearly
4 years ago.
The Chair invited the Applicant to ask the Police questions and Mr Heron
advised that he had none.
The Chair then invited Members to ask both the Applicant and Police questions.
Members’ Questions
Councillor Colville asked what the nature of the offence was. Inspector
Armstrong advised that the offence was for careless driving and that it was a
minor misdemeanour.
The Chair asked both parties to confirm that they had received a fair hearing and
they both confirmed this to be the case.
Debate
Councillor Chalmers advised that as this was a relatively minor misdemeanour in
the circumstances he was inclined to grant the licence.
Decision
It was unanimously agreed to grant a Taxi Driver’s licence to Mr Heron.
(Reference: Report by Head of Governance and Law, submitted)

Page 5

Agenda Item 3c

MINUTES of MEETING of PLANNING, PROTECTIVE SERVICES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD
on WEDNESDAY, 18 APRIL 2012

Present:

Councillor Roderick McCuish (Chair)
Councillor Rory Colville
Councillor Gordon Chalmers
Councillor Robin Currie

Attending:

Councillor Mary-Jean Devon
Councillor David Kinniburgh
Councillor Bruce Marshall

Alison Younger, Central Governance Manager
Angus Gilmour, Head of Planning and Regulatory Services
Richard Kerr, Principal Planning Officer
Alan Morrison, Regulatory Services Manager

The Chair referred to the sad death of Councillor Alister MacAlister and that the
Committee had lost two Councillors this year. He advised that Alister was a quiet but
valued member of the Committee and that Members’ thoughts were with his family.
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were intimated from Councillors Vivien Dance, Daniel
Kelly, Neil Mackay, Donald MacMillan, Alex McNaughton and James McQueen.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None declared.

3.

MINUTES
(a) The Minutes of the Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee
of 13 March 2012 were approved as a correct record.
(b) The Minutes of the Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee
of 21 March 2012 (10.00 am) were approved as a correct record.
(c) The Minutes of the Planning, Protective Services and Licensing Committee
of 21 March 2012 (10.30 am) were approved as a correct record.

The Chair ruled, and the Committee agreed, to vary the order of business and consider
all the planning reports next on the agenda.
4.

MRS LYNN CLARK: SITE FOR ERECTION OF DWELLINGHOUSE AND
ALTERATION TO ACCESS: LAND SOUTH WEST OF MUDHEIREADH,
BALUACHRACH, TARBERT (REF: 09/00564/OUT)
The Principal Planning Officer spoke to the terms of a report advising that this
proposal seeks the development (in principle) of a new dwelling house within the
curtilage of Mudheireadh. The plot lies within the settlement zone of Tarbert
where the proposal is to be assessed in the context of Structure Plan Policy
STRAT DC 1 and Local Plan Policy LP HOU 1. He advised that the Roads

Page 6
Engineer objected to the proposal on access grounds and that objections had
also been received from 11 individuals including the occupiers of all 3 properties
that overlook the application site. He recommended refusal of this application for
the reasons outlined in the report.
Decision
Agreed to refuse planning permission (in principle) for the following reasons:1. This application relates to land within a cluster of dwellings originally forming
part of a small crofting community on the outskirts of Tarbert. Whilst this has
now been subsumed within the settlement due to the encroachment of
adjoining development, it does, however, still retain small dwellings and an
informal clustering of buildings, including some undeveloped land and
narrow unmade access tracks, which is untypical of more recent planned
development in the surrounding area. Whilst some development has recently
been completed on the margins of this cluster, further development as
proposed would infill the last remaining open area of any significance within
this cluster and would involve additional vehicles using sub-standard single
width access tracks, involving in particular, additional use of the access
passing immediately in front of adjacent terraced cottages by vehicles
associated with the applicant’s existing dwelling and the proposed dwelling,
and increasing the number of properties served by that access to seven.
Such level of usage at close quarters and having regard to the sub-standard
width and geometry of the access and the lack of off-street parking to serve
the existing dwellings would be to the detriment of the residential amenity of
the occupiers of those dwellings. The shortcomings of the access regime,
together with the loss of this open area to infill development, which would
necessarily have to be sited uncharacteristically at right angles to adjacent
buildings so as not to compromise privacy, would conspire to produce a form
of development which, when these factors are considered together, would
have adverse consequences for the residential amenity of adjacent
properties. The development does not secure an acceptable relationship with
adjacent properties and does not constitute a form of infill development
which is sympathetic to its surroundings, and therefore fails to satisfy
development plan policies STRAT DC 1, LP HOU 1 or LP ENV 19.
2. The geometry of the existing access makes it unsuitable to sustain further
development. The existing public roads in the immediate vicinity are narrow
and heavily parked with resident's vehicles. This also restricts the ability of
this area to sustain further development. The proposed development would
therefore represent an unacceptable intensification of use of a substandard
private access regime, contrary to policy LP TRAN 4 of the Argyll and Bute
Local Plan.
(Reference: Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services dated 11 April
2012, submitted)
5.

MRS P MACKAY: SITE FOR THE ERECTION OF 2 DWELLINGHOUSES:
LAND WEST OF LOCHVIEW, ARDFERN (REF: 11/02560/PPP)
The Principal Planning Officer spoke to the terms of the report and to
supplementary planning report number 1. This application was continued from

Page 7
the last meeting in order to afford the Applicants the opportunity to prepare an
amended illustrative layout in an attempt to overcome some of the policy
impediments to the proposal, and to allow Members an opportunity to give
consideration as to whether an amended Area Capacity Evaluation (ACE) should
be brought forward as justification for any prospective motion in support of the
development. The Principal Planning Officer referred to the detail of the ACE
prepared by Planning Officers and advised that the first task for the Committee
was to determine the details of this. Councillor Colville presented an
amendment to the ACE which was unanimously approved by Members.
The Committee then went on to consider the detail of the application. The
Principal Planning Officer referred to the original submission and advised that
the Roads Engineer raised no objections subject to access improvements. He
advised that Craignish Community Council had objected on the grounds that the
proposal was contrary to Local Plan Policy and the recently completed and
approved Community Plan which will feed into the Local Plan. He advised that
the Applicants had prepared an amended illustrative site layout giving due
cognisance to the presence of the Rural Opportunity Area (ROA) boundary. The
amended plan has confirmed that it would be possible to contain both dwellings
and their access arrangements within the confines of the ROA and as a
consequence it is sufficient to overcome recommended reason for refusal
number 1 in the main report, insofar as appropriate conditions could render any
enclosure of garden ground outwith the ROA as de minimus. However, at the
time of writing the supplementary report, the retention of two dwellings and their
repositioning as suggested did not overcome recommended reason for refusal
number 2 which was founded around the conclusions of the Council’s
Landscape Capacity Study and the findings of the ACE prepared subsequently
by Officers. In view of the Committee’s decision to approve an alternative ACE
this 2nd reason for refusal was now undermined. The Principal Planning Officer
recommended that if the Committee were minded to approve the planning
application conditions should be agreed limiting the position, scale and permitted
development rights of plot 2.
Decision
The Committee agreed:1. That the ACE assessment is acceptable subject to the deletion of the section
in the planning report around the assessment of capacity to absorb
development and that the ACE assessment be concluded as set out in the
Appendix to this Minute;
2. In light of the ACE assessment that the application be approved on the basis
of the ACE assessment demonstrating that the development is compatible
with planning policy and as such can be absorbed into the landscape with no
detrimental impact given the analysis contained within the ACE critique;
3. That it be delegated to the Head of Planning and Regulatory Services in
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning, Protective
Services and Licensing Committee and Councillor Rory Colville to finalise
appropriate conditions and reasons to be attached to the planning consent;
and

Page 8
4. Noted that approval of this planning application exhausts opportunities for
further development in this ACE compartment.
(Reference: Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services dated 6 March
2012 and supplementary report number dated 12 April 2012, submitted)
6.

DUNBRITTON HOUSING ASSOCIATION: FORMATION OF ROUNDABOUT
ON A814 TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENT:
HERMITAGE ACADEMY, CAMPBELL DRIVE, HELENSBURGH (REF:
12/00417/PP)
The Principal Planning Officer spoke to the terms of the report advising that
planning permission was sought for the formation of a roundabout on the A814
to provide access to new housing development on part of the former Hermitage
Academy site. A separate application for the development of part of this site has
been submitted by the same applicant under reference 12/00319/PP and is
pending determination. The application site is located within the settlement
boundary of Helensburgh where there is a presumption in favour of development
subject to a number of site specific criteria being met. The site was the subject
of a detailed planning permission for a 166 dwelling development served by a
roundabout access in April 2008 (07/01955/DET). That permission has not been
implemented due to the applicant company having gone into receivership.
Although the roundabout was approved as part of that consent which remains
valid, it cannot be implemented independently of the approved development due
to the effect of pre-commencement conditions associated with the development
as a whole. Accordingly this separate application has been submitted which
would enable construction of the roundabout without the complication of it being
tied into detailed consent for residential development which is not to be pursued,
but which is now intended to be the subject of a revised scheme. The extant
permission is a material consideration in the determination of this application. It
is considered that the proposal is acceptable and accords with Local Plan
policies and is therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions and
reasons detailed in the report.
Decision
1. Agreed to grant planning permission subject to the following conditions and
reasons:(a) The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details
specified on the application form dated 15/02/12 and the approved
drawing reference numbers L(20) 008 unless the prior written approval of
the planning authority is obtained for an amendment to the approved
details under Section 64 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland)
Act 1997.
Reason: For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is
implemented in
accordance with the approved details.
(b) Within 4 months of the roundabout being first brought into use, it shall be
completed by means of a scheme of surface treatment, landscaping
and/or artwork in accordance with a scheme which shall be submitted in

Page 9
advance and approved in writing by the Council as Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to secure an appearance appropriate to the locality in
the interests of visual amenity.
2. Agreed that the final design of the roundabout be approved by the
Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee.
(Reference: Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services dated 30
March 2012, submitted)
7.

MR J WALSH: ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSION TO DWELLINGHOUSE:
VICTORIA VILLA, 34 ROYAL CRESCENT, DUNOON (REF: 12/00628/PP)
The Principal Planning Officer spoke to the terms of the report advising that this
dwelling house lies within a Special Built Environment Area adjacent to Dunoon
Conservation Area. The proposal involves the removal of the existing utility
room, storage room, greenhouse, canopy and timber deck and the erection of a
two storey extension. A sun lounge is to be erected to the south west elevation
with a timber deck with associated steps leading onto the grassed area of the
rear garden. The proposal accords with policies LP ENV 1, LP ENV 14, LP ENV
19 and LP HOU 5 of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan (2009) and the proposal
raised no other material consideration which would justify refusal of permission.
Decision
Agreed to grant planning permission subject to the following condition and
reason:1. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
drawings as follows: Drawing Number 305-01 and Drawing Number 305-02
unless the prior written approval of the planning authority is obtained for
other materials/finishes/for an amendment to the approved details under
Section 64 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.
Reason: For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is
implemented in accordance with the approved details.
(Reference: Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services dated 29
March 2012, submitted)

The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for the following item of business on the
grounds that it was likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Paragraph 13 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.
8.

ENFORCEMENT UPDATE: 10/00319/ENAMEN
Consideration was given to an update on enforcement case 10/00319/ENAMEN.
Decision
Agreed to the recommendation detailed in the report.

Page 10
(Reference: Report by Head of Planning and Regulatory Services dated 18 April
2012, submitted)
The Chair ruled, and the Committee agreed, to invite the press and public back into the
meeting.
Councillor Gordon Chalmers left the meeting at 11.50 am.
9.

CHANGE TO THE PROVISION OF CONSUMER ADVICE IN SCOTLAND
Consideration was given to a report advising Members of the changes to the
provision of consumer advice which, as a result of UK Government changes, has
resulted in the consumer advice services being transferred from Consumer
Direct’s Hotline to the new Citizens Advice consumer service.
Decision
Noted the changes to the provision of consumer advice, and affirmed the
decision made to enter into the new data sharing arrangements with Citizens
Advice nationally which are required to facilitate an effective service to
consumers within Argyll and Bute who will still be able to access the service
unchanged.
(Reference: Report by Regulatory Services Manager dated March 2012,
submitted)

10.

JOINT HEALTH PROTECTION PLAN 2012 - 2014
The Public Health, etc (Scotland) Act 2008 requires each NHS Health Board to
prepare a Joint Health Protection Plan (JHPP) every 2 years in consultation with
their local authorities within their area. The Plan requires to be approved by
each local authority and the NHS Board. The inaugural Plan was developed for
2010 – 2012 and approved by Members of the PPSL Committee on 21 April
2010. Consideration was given to the 2012 – 2014 Plan which outlines national
and local priorities and the health protection arrangements between NHS
Highland, Argyll and Bute Council and Highland Council.
Decision
The Committee agreed to:1. Note the work being undertaken across the health protection agenda which
goes largely unrecognised until there is a significant incident where the
measures come to the fore;
2. Approve the Joint Health Protection Plan 2012 – 2014; and
3. Place a requirement on the Regulatory Services Manager, as the Council’s
Designated Competent Person under the Act, to sign the plan on behalf of
the Council and to implement the necessary measures to meet this plan and
to provide an interim progress report for the April 2013 Committee.

Page 11
(Reference: Report by Regulatory Services Manager dated March 2012 and
NHS Highland Area Joint Health Protection Plan April 2012 – March 2014,
submitted)
11.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY LAW ENFORCEMENT PLAN 2012 2013
The Council provides a statutory workplace safety law enforcement service in
terms of the Health and Safety at Work etc (Scotland) Act 1974 and is required
in terms of the Section 18 Guidance issued by the Health and Safety Executive
to formally approve an Occupational Health and Safety Law Enforcement Plan
annually. A report presenting the Occupational Health and Safety Law
Enforcement Plan 2012 – 2013 and the Enforcement Policy was considered.
Decision
1. Approved the Plan and Enforcement Policy relating to Occupational Health
and Safety Law Enforcement which details the service priorities for 2012-13
and noted the drive to revitalise health and safety enforcement in Argyll and
Bute Council;
2. Noted the significant changes to how health and safety enforcement is
delivered in the United Kingdom and that the Council is currently reviewing
its arrangements in line with these requirements to ensure local and national
priorities are met; and
3. Agreed that a report should be brought to the PPSL Committee in October
2012 confirming these new arrangements referred to in decision 2 above.
(Reference: Report by Regulatory Services Manager dated March 2012, Argyll
and Bute Council’s Occupational Health and Safety Law Enforcement Plan
2012-13 and Argyll and Bute Council’s Occupational Health and Safety Law
Enforcement Policy, submitted)

12.

ANIMAL HEALTH SERVICE PLAN 2012 - 2013
The Council’s Animal Health and Welfare Strategy duties are provided by
qualified and competent authorised inspectors located within the Council’s
Regulatory Services Unit. As a requirement of the new Framework Document
issued by the Scottish Government, the Service Plan required to be formally
approved by the Council. A report detailing the Animal Health and Welfare
Service Plan for 2012/2013 was considered.
Decision
1. Approved the Service Plan subject to the following amendments:In respect of undertaken primary production inspections, Programmed
inspection programme of 20 premises to be completed instead of 59
premises due to a reduction in funding.
In respect of Exercise the Argyll and Bute Generic Disease Plan, remove
reference to the multi agency forward operating centre as this has already

Page 12
been completed; and
2. Recognised the Animal Health and Welfare Service meets the standards
defined in the Framework Agreement for Local Authorities.
(Reference: Report by Regulatory Services Manager dated March 2012 and
Animal Health and Welfare: Operational Plan and Priorities 2012-13, submitted)
13.

FOOD SAFETY LAW ENFORCEMENT WORK PLAN 2012 - 2014
The Food Standards Agency Framework Agreement on Local Authority Food
Law Enforcement requires the Council to produce and review an annual Food
Safety Service Plan for consideration and approval by elected Members. A
report presenting the Food Safety Law Enforcement Service Plan for 2012 –
2013 was considered.
Decision
The Committee agreed to:1. Recognise the work being undertaken by Environmental Health staff in
respect of food safety and note the achievements in 2011/12 in protecting
food safety and supporting businesses; and
2. Approve the Food Safety Law Enforcement Service Plan for 2012-13; the
appointment of the statutory Public Analysts, Agricultural Analyst and Food
Examiners, and revisions to the Council’s Enforcement Policy.
(Reference: Report by Regulatory Services Manager dated March 2012 and
Food Safety Law Enforcement Plan 2012/13, submitted)

14.

VALEDICTORY
The Chair thanked Members and Officers for all their help and contributions to
the PPSL Committee over the last 5 years.

Page 13
Appendix A
d) Capacity to Absorb Development Successfully
The character of this rural area is essentially of undulating rough and semiimproved roughgrazing set on a series of plateau which step back from the
coastscape. Existing development is concentrated in a loose cluster around the
Corranmor Farm and the recommendation of the Council’s LCS seeks to
reinforce this pattern.
The Council’s LCS allows a restricted area of land for further small scale
development, the extent of this apparently being defined by the southern
boundaries of the ROA and by a desire that development visually coalesce
within a loose cluster around Corranmor and that development be restricted to
two or three new buildings so as to avoid overdevelopment at this location.
The planning permissions in principle for three dwellings which have been
granted within the ACE compartment during early 2011 have been arrived with
officers having satisfied themselves that development in the middle and upper
tiers of the compartment would largely be screened from view from the B8002,
and in the knowledge that although open to view from Loch Craignish, buildings
at these location would appear as part of a grouping around Corranmor, as
relatively small elements set against the backdrop of higher land to the north
which frames a panoramic landscape/coastscape setting. The permissions
previously granted relate specifically to locations on the edge of the ACE
compartment where development can be set against points of transition in the
immediate landscape setting, with
additional planting to reinforce these features. It is considered that the upper
portion of the ACE compartment does not hold any further capacity for
development, as this would involve breaking into the open areas of rough and
semi-improved grazing where new development would appear isolated from
existing built development around Corranmor. It is also recognised that it would
be desirable to preserve elements of space between buildings to retain the
essentially rural, low density, informal characteristics of the existing development
pattern and such it is considered that future proposals for the infilling of essential
spaces between buildings would be resisted.
Turning to the lower portion of the ACE compartment, it is considered that there
is the ability for the landscape to accommodate additional development
successfully as the dwellings consented above Corranmor have not exhausted
the development potential of Corranmor Farm to act as a focus for a related
cluster of buildings. Two further dwellings could reinforce the existing
development at Corranmor without significantly increasing the development
footprint in this area, provided that built development is confined to the ROA
boundary, other than for any encroachment of garden ground which could be
regarded as being de minimis. Furthermore, two properties could be sited so as
to minimise the impact from the key view points and with appropriate design and
landscape works could be successfully integrated into their landscape setting.
This scale of development designed and laid out in a sensitive manner would not
appear a dominant feature in the relatively contained views afforded from the
B8002 in either direction.
In concluding the above, I have been influenced by the applicant’s

Page 14
commissioned landscape report (Grontmij Nov 2011) which arrives at a different
conclusion and challenges the capacity assumption arrived at in the previous
Landscape Capacity report produced by Gillespies on behalf of the Council,
which concluded that up to three additional dwellings would represent the point
at which development capacity is reached. Gillespies conclusion was based on
the premise that the farmstead at Corranmor represented an appropriate focus
for additional small-scale development in the countryside, but that a dispersed
loose cluster would be the most suitable form of development. The stance
adopted by Grontmij is that a more tightly grouped cluster of buildings would be
appropriate, particularly given their view that the loose association achieved by
the unimplemented consents granted to date is too tentative as an attempt to
focus development in an appropriate manner, in the interests of creating a sense
of place. I am minded to support the professional view from Grontmij as to the
capacity to absorb the proposed development rather than that of the Council’s
consultants, as I believe that there will not be an adverse visual impact on the
landscape if the development is allowed to proceed on the basis that it is sited
and designed so that it does not intrude inappropriately on the skyline above the
public road or detract significantly from key views out from the footpath passing
the site. This can be achieved by careful siting and landscaping conditions as
part of the submission of details pursuant to the granting of consent in principle.
The proposed development can therefore be accommodated into the settlement
pattern of the ACE compartment but will exhaust the capacity for any further
development in this ACE area.

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

Argyll and Bute Council
Development & Infrastructure Services
Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as
required by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning
Permission or Planning Permission in Principle

Reference No:
Planning Hierarchy:
Applicant:
Proposal:
Site Address:

11/02280/PP
Local
M and K McLeod Ltd.
Change of use from Ambulance Depot (Sui Generis) to Class 6
(Storage or Distribution) - retrospective.
Former Ambulance Station, Manse Brae, Lochgilphead

DECISION ROUTE
Local Government Scotland Act 1973

(A)

THE APPLICATION
(i)

Development Requiring Express Planning Permission
• Change of use from former Ambulance depot to Class 6 (Storage or
Distribution);
• Associated extension of car park.

(ii)

Other specified operations
• Amended configuration of junction onto private access;
• Removal of pedestrian railings.

(B)

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that permission be granted on a temporary basis subject to the
conditions attached.

(C)

CONSULTATIONS:
Area Roads Engineer – (06.12. 11) no objections subject to conditions
Environmental Health Officer (21.02.12) – revised response based on applicants selfimposed restrictions: no objections subject to stated restrictions and recommended
conditions.
Core Paths Officer (10.01.12) - pedestrian access to be maintained along the existing
footway.
Lochgilphead Community Council (21.02.12) – objects to the change of use from

Page 16

Ambulance Depot to Class 6 (Storage or Distribution) for the following reasons :
1. The proposed storage/distribution facility is in a well established residential
area, unsuitable for the proposed industrial use.
2. Loading and unloading of material will undoubtedly create noise.
(in the event of approval there should be a set time limit for loading/unloading,
i.e. from Monday – Friday (inclusive) between 09.00 to 17.00 hrs).
3. The road leading to the hospital is very busy and already overstretched since
the new hospital was commissioned. There should be a minimum of
restrictions for ambulances to and from the hospital. The use of articulated
lorries or other vehicles on and manoeuvring into/from this road will be a
hindrance. Visibility is seen as an issue.
4. The core path is next to the facility and seems to be encroached on by the
lorry’s turning area. Pedestrians in particular small children could be in
danger. On drawing 4482/102 it is unwisely suggested to remove the railing to
the west side of the footpath.

(D)

HISTORY:
In relation to the current application site:
94/00047/DET
Extension to Ambulance Station, granted 28.02.1984
97/00693/DET
Alterations to Ambulance Depot, granted 10.06.1997
98/01391/CLWP {Application for Certificate of Lawful Use/Development (proposed)}
re Use of ambulance depot for servicing and repair of nonambulance vehicles, refused 23.12.1998
06/01984/COU Change of use from Ambulance Depot to Vehicle Service Depot;
Withdrawn 27.04.2007
In relation to adjoining property:
06/02446/DET
09/00950/DE

(E)

Erection of dwellinghouse within garden ground of the Old Manse –
granted – 16th July 2007
Erection of 88 dwellinghouses – Former Mid Argyll Hospital and
Lochgilphead High School granted 28.10.09

PUBLICITY:
Period for representation ended on 13.01.2012 both in relation to a Regulation 20
Advertisement and an Advertisement and Site Notice relating to the effect of the
development on a neighbouring Listed Building.

(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:
(i)

Representations received from:
The following four household and one legal practise acting on behalf of one of
those households have submitted objections. Some of the households submitted

Page 17

more than one letter/e-mail and the points raised are summarised below.
Neil and Elaine Vassie, Old Manse, Manse Brae, Lochgilphead
Robert Millar, Misty Law, Manse Brae, Lochgilphead
Mr. Pieter Kastelein, Cruach, Manse Brae, Lochgilphead
Ann B & R.A.C. Byatt, Drim Na Vullin, Blarbuie Road, Lochgilphead
John Stirling of Gillespie MacAndrew LLP, 5 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh
(ii)

Summary of issues raised:
•

The location plan fails to indicate the present built residential status of the
area, being a major housing development of at least 61 houses on
completion.
Comment: It is often the case that Ordnance Survey location plans do not
portray recently developed properties; as it happens the applicant’s plans
do indicate most of the recently constructed dwellings. The important fact
is that the planning assessment has been undertaken by officers who are
aware of the details of neighbouring development which has been
consented but only partly constructed The consequences of this proposal
in respect of development yet to be completed has been assessed and no
adverse issues arise.

•

Potential residents (of houses being constructed) are denied any right to
comment.
Comments: This is not possible to resolve; the views of prospective future
occupiers cannot be anticipated, although a professional judgement can
be made as to the acceptability of the relationship between the residential
and commercial uses. Due process requires a decision to be made in
advance of the completion and occupation of adjacent buildings.

•

The former Ambulance Station was designated a ‘bad neighbour’
development by Argyll and Bute Council.
Comments: This statement would need to be substantiated; its source is
not known. Issues of ‘bad neighbour’ or otherwise are discussed in the
assessment below.

•

An earlier application for industrial use by W.S. Atkins on behalf of
Scottish Ambulance Service and Strathclyde Police has already been
thrown out by Argyll and Bute Councillors.
Comments: The application was withdrawn and was not considered by
Members, the applicants being aware that the Council’s officers were not
supportive of an application seeking an intensification of the
repair/maintenance of ambulances to also include all NHS/hospital fleet
vehicles combined with the repair and maintenance of Strathclyde Police
vehicles.

•

There should be more than a reassessment by Environmental Health
Officers and Roads Engineers now that the application has been
amended to use unlimited 10 metre fixed bed lorries.

Page 18

Comments: A reassessment of the applicant’s revised proposals which
make the use and traffic management arrangements of the proposal more
restricted has been undertaken by all relevant officers.
•

The area, an established residential zone, is totally unsuitable for
industrial use which could include the use of heavy articulated vehicles
adjacent to both a designated core path and the listed grounds of the
Thomas Telford Old Manse.
Comments: The application is not for industrial use (General Industrial
Use being Class 5) but rather for storage and distribution (Class 6) which
unless limited by condition in any permission could later (upon the first
taking up of a class 6 activity) be also used for (Class 4) (Business) –
comprising business/office activities that would not harm residential
amenity. Whilst the sought after use will involve lorries, the frequency of
them coming/leaving the site will have a direct correlation with the size of
this small unit. Assessment in relation to residential amenity/the effect on
the neighbouring listed building and the core path is reported in the
Appendix below.

•

It is recognised that the trees within the curtilage of the listed Old Manse
have a level of protection, but the trees on the other side of the boundary
within the application site benefit from no such protection.
Comments: It is not true that trees within the curtilage of the listed
property the Grade B Old Manse are protected. No TPO exists on the site
neither is it in a Conservation Area which would give a level of protection.
Listed status on its own does not protect curtilage trees.
The trees outside of the curtilage, unlike the deciduous trees within it, are
multi-trunk specimens which whilst large in size would not be considered
worthy for TPO protection because of their form. The application does not
seek a widening of the road, which means the trees can remain should
the land owner wish to retain them.

•

If the hours of use are only going to be restricted in relation to
loading/unloading from 08.00 to 18.00 hours for six days a week, the
implication that other worker use could be accommodated 24/7would be a
bad neighbour activity.
Comments: The room for associated office activities with the
storage/distribution use is small, only some 4 x 5 metres and the level of
movement to and from the premises for that use would be unlikely to be
any different than the level arising from any of the two dwellings also
served by this road. Given that the ambulance depot did not have a
restriction on hourly use at all, any office/welfare use activity beyond the
hours of 08.00 to 18.00 will be less problematical to residential amenity
than the former use. It is not normal for the Planning Authority to impose a
restrictive use of hours upon office activities/uses which are capable of
occurring without harm to the amenity of residential properties. The
separation distances between these uses in this instance are also
acceptable.

Page 19

•

A claim that the applicant does not own the private road as defined in the
application form/plans.
Comments: The applicants have been advised of this claim and have
responded by reaffirming ownership, also offering evidence to that effect.
It is not open to the Council to challenge that evidence which appears
substantive. During consideration of this issue it did become apparent that
the applicants do not own the bank within the original eastern part of the
site which was to be partially excavated to accommodate a 4th car parking
space. Because of this the application site has been reduced in size and
the 4th car parking space is now shown as to be provided elsewhere on
land in the applicant’s control. Because this amendment is minor, and is
contained within the original red edge site, the proposal can be assessed
competently within the context of the original application.

•

A comment that the ambulance station did not need consent before 1991.
A further questioning comment that the use sought appears to be
temporary until April 2012.
Comments: It is true that the original ambulance station was established
without the need for planning permission under relevant procedures
applying to government development at the time, but that is not a relevant
consideration as the use is lawful. This assessment has to recognise that,
however unlikely, the lawful use could still be re-activated and on that
basis the proposed use needs to be assessed with that in mind. The
agent has clarified the apparent ambiguity that Mr. Vassie has highlighted,
and confirms the application has been submitted in a bid to secure a
change of use on a permanent basis.

The above comments are noted by Mr.& Mrs Vassie and the following five
points (1) to (5) below are noted by their solictors Gillespie Macandrew LLP
acting on their behalf.
•

(1) Insufficient detail of proposed development provided, e.g. frequency
and type of traffic expected at the site is unclear, type of materials to be
stored are not clear, for example are hazardous chemicals to be stored?
Comments: The application is for a change of use of a small single storey
building with an internal floor-space just short of 14.5m x 10.5m, a
significant proportion of which is needed for toilet facilities/mess room/and
ancillary office activities. The area left for storage is some 78 sq. metres.
The frequency of traffic serving such a use can never be specified with
accuracy and judgement has to be made upon the scale of the
development and the likely traffic implications arising from it.
In answer to the solicitor’s comments about potential storage of
hazardous materials, if notifiable hazardous substances were required to
be stored in these premises, then separate hazardous substances would
be required.

•

(2) On the grounds that it is believed that a use occurred within the site on
or around the 11 November 2011, should not this application be refused
as incompetent, as it does not seek retrospective planning permission.

Page 20

Comments: The applicants have confirmed in their letter of 11.01.12 that
that the premises are being used temporarily for the storage of kitchen
units and doors in respect of the dwellings being constructed on adjacent
land by the Company, Macleod Construction Ltd, with the anticipation of
that temporary use ceasing by April 2012.
Class 14 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (Scotland) Order 1992, provides that land within, or
adjoining, construction sites may legitimately be used for temporary
storage purposes for the duration of building works (including the erection
of structures or the siting of containers), without the requirement for
planning permission. In this case, the developers have chosen to use the
vacant building in preference to siting storage containers or erecting any
other temporary structures or buildings within the site. This situation is not
provided for by Class 14, despite the fact that in amenity terms, temporary
storage of materials associated with construction on the adjacent site
within this building, is likely to be preferable to occupation of the
associated land for this purpose. The use for which permission is being
sought is for a permanent use of the building, unrelated to the applicant’s
construction activities on the adjoining site although it should be regarded
as being retrospective in view of the applicant’s interim occupation of the
building.
•

(3) Bad Neighbour Aspects. It is submitted that the proposal falls under
Schedule 7 of the Town and Country Planning (General Development
Procedure)(Scotland) Order 1992 and that as a consequence the terms of
policy LP BAD 1 needs to be considered by the Authority, the solicitor
claiming that the use will (i) present unacceptable adverse effects on the
amenity of neighbouring residents, (ii) that there are no appropriate
measures which could satisfactorily reduce the impact on amenity and (iii)
that the objections on amenity grounds remain significant and cannot be
overcome. The solicitor seems to consider that an intensification of the
use affecting amenity will arise because a significant proportion of the
floor space is to be given over to incidental office/mess room use and as
will become a ‘hub’ for the applicants’ workforce increasing traffic flow. It
is claimed that Environmental Health Officers object.
Comments: The solicitor’s reference to Schedule 7 in the 1992 Order is
not appropriate in the context of this proposal – these provisions have
been superseded by Schedule 3 of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008. The
relevant sections of the Regulations place an onus on a Planning
Authority to publish an application as a ‘Bad Neighbour’ development, and
assess it as such, if the Authority consider that the development would:
(a) affect residential property by reason of fumes, noise, vibration, smoke,
artificial lighting, or discharge of any solid or liquid substance;
(b) alter the character of an area of established amenity;
(c) bring crowds into a generally quiet area;
(d) cause activity and noise between the hours of 8pm and 8am; and
(e) introduce significant change into a homogeneous area.

Page 21

Because of subsequent amended legislation the requirement is that a
Planning Authority place a single Regulation (20) advertisement if there is
vacant land adjacent to the site (as there is in this case) and/or if it
considers any of the above ‘bad neighbour’ circumstances are applicable.
The fact that a Regulation (20) advertisement has been placed (in respect
of vacant land) does not imply that it is considered by the Council that
residential amenity would be significantly affected. The assessment of this
case (see Appendix below), does make the judgement as to whether the
proposal infringes the safeguarding requirements of Local Plan policy LP
BAD 1.
If the Class 6 use were to be permitted and the premises were to be used
for another purpose such as to constitute a material change of use, that
would either become an enforcement matter or a matter to be considered
by way of a further planning application.
The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has re-assessed matters
following the modifcation of the application and no longer has concerns,
and does not object to the proposal subject to recommended conditions.
•

(4) Setting of the Proposed Development. It is within a residential area
and proposal would result in a material loss of amenity, particularly with
regard to the increased traffic flow, and this affect would be detrimental to
(our clients) Listed Building (Grade B Thomas Telford Manse).
Comments: These issues are dealt with in the assessment section below.

•

(5) Environmental issues relating to access to the site. The lorry
movement will reduce the nearby air quality. Unless a restriction is
imposed in any permission noise and light pollution from traffic will occur
at unsocial hours. Even within ‘social’ hours, noise from lorries idling could
be significant. High cab height could result in loss of privacy into the Old
Manse. Various other comment about railings/Road surface damage/and
delays in traffic on Blarbuie Road (mentioned and commented up below in
the context of views expressed by a different objector).
Comments: Given that there is no expectation of significant traffic levels
based on the limited size of the building and on the basis of the Council’s
Environmental Health Officers assessment, air quality is not expected to
change as a result of this development, particularly taking into account its
legitimate use as an ambulance depot.
Similarly, based on the fact that all manner of traffic, including
ambulances / delivery vehicles to hospitals and homes and bin lorries etc
use Manse Brae and Blarbuie Road which exists within 13m of the Old
Manse and 34 m of Drim-na-vullin, it is not expected the traffic associated
with this small storage building, the private road for which is 40m from the
dwelling of the Old Manse and 155m from that of Drim-na-villin, will
generate any serious noise issues to those properties, such that they
would experience any significant diminution in residential amenity. This
assessment has regard to the background noise levels associated with
traffic in the locality, and takes account of the expected small volume of
traffic the use will generate given its limited floor-space.
Light pollution to the residence of the Old Manse from the lorry/van lights

Page 22

manoeuvring into/out of the car park in the winter months within the
operational hours to be placed on any potential permission, is not
considered a serious issue based on the distances involved combined
with the fact that behind the boundary fence of the Old Manse with its few
deciduous trees there is then a moderately strong and high cypress
leylandii hedge which helps maintain separation between the commercial
and residential uses.
•

Hospital access. The planning application calls for both the access and
egress of both heavy single chassis and also articulated lorries,
manoeuvring slowly on Blarbuie Road, at a point below the hospital
directly on this vital emergency access as used by ambulances and
emergency vehicles.
Comments: Since this point was made, the applicants have volunteered a
self-imposed restriction upon the management of the unit such that they
will ensure that articulated lorries will not arrive/leave from this property
except in a rare case, anticipated as being not more than once a year.
The use of smaller vehicles is unlikely present the problem envisaged by
this representation. The Area Roads Manager has not objected to the
development.

•

This access was rejected as a suitable point of access for the new
residential development which required the new access higher up the hill;
how is it acceptable for this development?
Comments: There is a significant difference in the volume of traffic that
will use the new road system immediately to the north east of this site to
serve a large new housing development, compared with the very much
lower volume of traffic that would use the present access and its junction
with the public road. Additionally, the present access historically served
an ambulance depot with its associated vehicle movements. Given that
the applicant has shown that flat-bed lorries can readily negotiate the
junctions and having regard to the past use of the site, the Roads
Engineer accepts that this proposal can function without any material
highway danger or nuisance sufficient to warrant refusal on road safety
grounds.

•

Road Maintenance. Blarbuie Road was not constructed for heavy traffic
use, its northern edge not resting on a secure bedrock but on weak micra
schist and a loose ground soil bank which has resulted in periodic slumps
to the roadside with increased residential, public transport and emergency
traffic taking a toll on the road surface; consequently heavy and
articulated lorry traffic to be generated by this proposal would exacerbate
the situation.
Comments: The Roads Engineer has assessed all facts and concluded
that the application can be supported.

•

Delay and disruption to residential access. Concern that large lorries
manoeuvring between Blarbuie Road and the site access will result in
traffic backing up on the public road, particularly from the new residential
development on the school site which lies opposite our own, all causing
disruption to exiting/entry off the private driveway serving Drim na Vullin

Page 23

with its sharp and steeply angled arrangement with Blarbuie Road which
lies opposite the residential estate access.
Comments: The Roads Engineer has assessed all facts and concluded
that the application can be supported.
•

Concern that heavy plant movement especially in winter icy conditions
may result in danger to pedestrian/vehicle user safety with limited curb
side space.
Comments: The Roads Engineer has assessed the turning circles of
lorries and concluded that manoeuvres will not necessitate kerb mounting
of footways.

•

The applicants are intent on removing the safety railings presently in
place on the western side of the private road, separating the vehicular
road from the core footpath, being a raised tarmac pavement in this
location. This will present a danger to pedestrian safety suggesting that
vehicle movements need to mount the pavement.
Comments: The applicants do need planning permission to remove
railings within their ownership, and as their continued existence presents
a maintenance issue, it is understandable that they might wish to remove
something they consider unnecessary. The railings were put in place to
segregate high volumes of pupils walking to/from the old High School at
the same time as school buses other school traffic and ambulances were
arriving/departing using the same route. Conflict between vehicle
movements and high levels of pedestrians is no longer an issue and the
Roads Authority does not see the need for such segregation by railings in
other locations, where for instance lorries pass town centre or other busy
footpaths.

•

Noise. Heavy lorries accessing or leaving the site will force ambulance
drivers to alert their passage in advance with increased use of sirens
causing a noise detrimental to residential amenity. Additionally the noise
of lorries will increase general traffic noise within the neighbouring
residential areas.
Comments: Based upon an expected low volume of traffic generation
consistent with the size of the storage floor-space and the fact that the
property is to be managed in such a way that the use of articulated lorries
is to be avoided, it is not expected that siren noise will significantly
increase, particularly given the presence of a junction serving a housing
estate. It recommended that the permission should be conditioned to
prevent goods being delivered or removed from the premises at night.

•

Pollution Runoff. The activities of heavy lorries in constant use will add oil
to the present considerable spillage that descends from the road into the
flowing water of the Cuilarstich Burn to the detriment of the natural
environment, a burn which in the past saw regular otters, dippers, sea
trout and salmon.
Comments: It is not expected that the proposed use will lead to any
material increase in pollution of the Cuilarstich Burn.

Page 24

(G)

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:

(H)

(i)

Environmental Statement:

No

(ii)

An appropriate assessment under the
Conservation (Natural Habitats) Regulations
1994:

No

(iii)

A design or design/access statement:

Yes
–
Site/Traffic
Management Plan dated
09.02.12

(iv)

A report on the impact of the proposed
development eg. Retail impact, transport
impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage
impact etc:

No

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
Is a Section 75 agreement required:

No

(I)

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31
or 32: No

(J)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.
‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’ 2002
STRAT DC 1 – Development within the Settlements
STRAT DC 9 – Historic Environment and Development Control
‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ 2009
LP ENV 1 – Impact on the General Environment
LP ENV 13a – Development Impact on Listed Buildings
LP ENV 19 – Development Setting, Layout and Design
LP BUS 1 – Business and Industry Proposals in Existing Settlements
LP BAD 1 – Bad Neighbour Development
LP TRAN 1 – Public Access and Rights of Way
LP TRAN 4 – New and Existing Public Roads and Private Access Regimes
LP TRAN 6 – Vehicle Parking Provision
PDA 12/1 – Lochgilphead High School site for housing.

Page 25

Appendix C – Access and Parking Standards
(ii)

List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in
the assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of
Circular 4/2009.
•
•
•
•

Scottish Planning Policy
Circular 21/84 Crown Land and Crown Development
Planning Advice Note (PAN) 1/2011 – Planning and Noise
Consultation and third party responses

(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental
Impact Assessment: No

(L)

Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): No

(M)

Has a sustainability check list been submitted: No

(N)

Does the Council have an interest in the site: No

(O)

Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): No

(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations
The proposal seeks planning permission for the change of use of a former ambulance
depot (sui generis) to form a storage building with approximately 80sqm of storage
space with ancillary office accommodation. The proposal does not include for any
material alteration of the existing building, with only minor amendment of the existing
junction into the site and extension of the parking layout required to serve the
proposed new use. The proposal will not have any significant impact upon the setting
of an adjoining category B listed former Manse, is compliant with the Council’s
technical standards relating to access, parking and turning and, having regard to the
previous use of the site as an ambulance depot, is considered capable of operating
without detriment to the established amenity of the locale and residents of adjoining
properties, both existing and proposed.
Lochgilphead Community Council has objected to the application. In addition third
party objection to the current proposal has been received from the residents of four
residential properties in the immediate vicinity of the application site and one of these
parties has engaged a legal representative to make further detailed representations
on their behalf. In summary, the issues of concern primarily relate to road safety,
residential amenity, management of the historic environment and procedural matters.
The site lies within a residential Potential Development Area (PDA) designated by the
local plan and the building is a remnant of the former hospital use of adjacent land
which now in association with adjacent redundant education land is in the process of

Page 26

being redeveloped for housing. The longer term aspiration for the site is therefore
some form of residential redevelopment conforming with the ongoing housing
redevelopment of the adjoining land. The building is currently in use for storage by
contractors implementing the ongoing housing development and their wish is to
continue to occupy the building for that purpose once the adjoin development is
complete. Given the location of the site within housing PDA 12/1 it would not be
appropriate to confer a permanent commercial use on this building given its
residential surroundings and the potential it has, when the market improves, to fulfil
the intended purpose of the site to provide residential accommodation. However, in
the shorter-term it has to be appreciated that the site operated as an ambulance
station until relatively recently, and that latterly it has been occupied as a contractors’
store without evident adverse consequences for residents.
Accordingly, notwithstanding the concerns raised by the Community Council and third
party objectors, it is considered that whilst a permanent permission as applied for
would be undesirable, a temporary permission sufficient to enable the site to serve
the needs of the remainder of the housing development it currently serves and
providing an opportunity to review the operation of the site in the light of experience
would be an appropriate response to the situation, and on that basis the proposal
would be consistent with the relevant provisions of both the Argyll and Bute Structure
Plan 2002 and the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009.
At the expiry of that period there would be an opportunity to review the future of the
building in the light of the situation prevailing at that time, with no obligation to
consider further storage occupation favourably if the applicants had failed to operate
the site with consideration for neighbours, or if the use had proved to be one
incapable of being operated without unacceptable amenity consequences in respect
of its surroundings.

(Q)

Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: Yes

(R)

Reasons why Planning Permission or Planning Permission in Principle Should
be Granted:
The proposal having regard to its intended use, the difference between the proposed
use and the present lawful use, the size of the building and its location, does not give
rise to significant detriment to material concerns, including residential amenity,
highway considerations, or the setting of a listed building, sufficient to warrant the
refusal of the application and there are no other considerations, including the views
expressed by consultees and third parties which would warrant anything other than a
temporary planning permission being granted in conformity with the provisions of the
development plan.

(S)

Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development
Plan
Not applicable.

(T)

Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: No

Page 27

Author of Report:

Derek Hay

Date:

15th May 2012

Reviewing Officer:

Peter Bain

Date:

15th May 2012

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning & Regulatory Services

Page 28

CONDITIONS AND REASONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 11/02280/PP
1.

This permission shall cease on or before 30th June 2015 other than in the event of a
further permission for continued use having been granted upon application to the
Planning Authority.
Reason: To define the permission and to provide opportunity to review the operation of
the permitted use in the light of experience in order to protect the amenity of the locale.

2.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details specified on the
application form dated 10.11.2011 and the approved drawing reference numbers 1 to 8
of 8 unless the prior written approval of the planning authority is obtained for an
amendment to the approved details under Section 64 of the Town and Country
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.
Reason: For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

3.

Notwithstanding the combined provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997 and the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order(s) 1992, Schedule 1, Class 12, the premises
shall only be used for a class 6 (storage and distribution) use as defined in the Town
and Country Planning (Use Classes)(Scotland) Order 1997, and the use of the
premises subsequently for any class 4 (business) use shall be prevented by this
condition, requiring separate planning permission for any such use.
For the avoidance of doubt, no preparation or working of materials by power or other
tools shall be permitted within the site as this would constitute a change of use to
Class 5 – General Industrial, which is not compatible with the existing mixture of uses
surrounding the site, including noise sensitive uses.
Reason: The site is compact with limited car parking for which reason it will need to be
assessed through a fresh planning application as to whether there is sufficient parking
for any specific class 4 (business) use as might be proposed and in order to protect the
amenity of the locale.

4.

No materials, goods, containers, caravans, trailers or waste products shall be stored
outside the building.
Reason: In the interest of neighbouring residential amenity and because of the
limitations of the site.

5.

The operation of the premises and the management of traffic to and from the premises
shall conform to the applicants’ site and traffic management plan as specified in the
statement of the 9th February 2012 attached hereto.
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity.

6.

Within three months of the date of this permission, the roadworks altering the
bellmouth and kerb line of the site access with the private road shall be implemented in
full in accordance with the details specified on drawing 3 of 8 (J568/C/01).
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Page 29

7.

Within three months of the date of this permission, the 4 on site car parking spaces and
vehicle turning area as shown on drawing 2 of 8 (4482/102) shall be constructed and
made available for use. Thereafter the approved car parking layout shall be retained for
the parking, turning and manoeuvring of vehicles.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

8.

The hours of operations for all delivery/dispatch activities shall be restricted to between
08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Saturday only with no activities permitted on
Sundays or Scottish Public Holidays without the prior written approval of the Planning
Authority.
Reason: To safeguard residential amenity.

9.

No external lighting shall be installed without the details of it having being first
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority in consultation with the
Council’s Environmental Health Officers. Any lighting as may be permitted pursuant to
the requirements of this condition shall be installed and maintained in a manner which
ensures no spillage of light onto neighbouring premises.
Reason: To safeguard residential amenity.

10.

The land and premises shall be used in such a way that the existing core footpath on
the western side of the private road, and the private road itself shall both remain
surfaced and free of obstruction for the movement of pedestrians (on the core path)
and the movement of vehicles (on the private road) through the site.
Reason: In the interest of pedestrian and highway vehicular safety.

NOTE TO APPLICANT
Alterations to the junction serving the access to the site pursuant to the requirements of
condition 6 above will require a Road Opening Permit under the Roads(Scotland) Act 1984.
Contact the Council’s Roads Engineers on 01546 604655.

Page 30

APPENDIX A – RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER: 11/02280/PP
PLANNING LAND USE AND POLICY ASSESSMENT
A.

Settlement Strategy
The application site is located within the Lochgilphead ‘settlement area’ wherein the
provisions of policies STRAT DC 1 and LP BUS 1 are supportive of up to and
including ‘large’ scale business and industry development (defined in the Local Plan
as Use Classes 4, 5, 6 and 7). The current proposal relates to a site area of 0.1ha
and an existing building of 160sqm floor area and as such falls within the definition of
‘small scale’ development as specified by Schedule B1; the provisions of Schedule
B2 seeks to direct ‘medium’ and ‘large’ scale business and industry development to
land allocated for this purpose in the first instance, but recognises that ‘small’ scale
business and industry development can be accommodated at other locations within
settlements.
The provisions of LP BUS 1 also require greenfield sites to be avoided where
brownfield locations area available; these provisions also requires proposals to be
compatible with the amenity of residential property, compliance with other applicable
policies and the Council’s technical standards in respect of access, parking and
pedestrian access as well as being of a design, scale and siting which respects
landscape/townscape appearance of the locale – detailed assessment of these
requirements is set out under items B, C, D and E below.
The application site is also located within Potential Development Area (PDA) 12/1
which seeks to promote the wider locality of the former Mid Argyll Hospital, former
Lochgilphead High School and adjoining land, including the former Ambulance
Station, for mixed density residential development. This aspiration has been partly
achieved to date with the grant and implementation of planning permission for the
provision of 88 dwelling units on the sites of the former hospital and high school.

B.

Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development
The current application site relates to some 0.1ha of land located to the south of
Blarbuie Road on a private road which formerly served the old Lochgilphead High
School, which has since been demolished with the vehicular access closed off and
development of residential property currently proceeding on the former campus
served by a new means of vehicular access. Pedestrian access remains with a
footpath along the western side of the road connecting Blarbuie Road with footpath
access into and through the new residential development, this footpath route being
identified on the Council’s list of Core Paths.
The character of the immediate locale has undergone substantial change in recent
times with the relocation of the former Mid Argyll Hospital and Lochgilphead High
School to alternative locations and the redevelopment of this land for residential
development. It is noted that the planning permission for the redevelopment of
adjoining land also incorporated the private access road and includes for the closure
of this road to prevent through vehicular traffic from Blarbuie Road to the former
Lochgilphead High School Site.
The current application site primarily relates to an existing depot building which was
constructed by and last used by the Scottish Ambulance Service for the stationing,
repair and maintenance of a limited fleet of vehicles with associated staff welfare

Page 31

facilities (sui generis). Whilst the lawful use of the site as an ambulance depot has
ceased, and the property has been sold by the Scottish Ambulance Service to the
current applicant, it is noted that the lawful use of the site has not been abandoned
and remains capable of being resumed without the benefit of planning permission.
Having regard to the provisions of Circular 21/1984, whilst planning permission was
never granted for the erection of this building, being development by the
Crown/Government Agency, it is considered to be a lawful use of land which is
capable of being continued following its disposal. The provisions of the Circular also
advise Planning Authorities to give due consideration to the retention and re-use of
such buildings for alternative purposes, given that their initial establishment was
funded by public expenditure.
The existing building is of single storey design and accommodates a
garage/workshop, stores, office and mess facilities. The site also includes the
adjoining private road which serves the site.
This application seeks planning permission for a change of use of the premises to
form a new Class 6 Use (storage and distribution) on the site; effectively this would
comprise the use of the existing building as a small warehouse. The details submitted
do not include for any material external alteration to the existing building. Internally it
is proposed to reconfigure the existing garage/workshop to provide approximately
80sqm of storage space. Access to the storage area would be via two roller shutter
doors in the north facing elevation of the building which are presently the means of
access to the present ambulance garage and workshop area. The proposed main
ancillary office room will use the present room allocated for ambulance crew training.
In order to accommodate the proposed new use the current application also specifies
the reconfiguration of an existing car park, the realignment of the junction from the
site onto the private access road and, the removal of railings on the footpath on the
west side of the private road. The details submitted by the applicant confirm the
provision of four car parking spaces with additional space for a delivery lorry to be
accommodated within the site, whilst retaining availability of access for two existing
residential properties which also utilise this private road as a means of vehicular
access.
The details accompanying the current application further advise that it is the intention
of the applicant to utilise the site for the storage of goods, all of which will take place
within the existing building without any element of external storage. The applicant
also states their intention to implement, and willingness be bound to, a traffic
management plan which would restrict the use of articulated vehicles to exceptional
circumstances, furthermore, it is proposed to restrict the delivery/dispatch of goods
to/from the site to the operational hours of 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Saturday,
excluding all Scottish public holidays to protect amenity of adjoining property,
although it is not proposed to restrict the time period for use of the ancillary office
facilities within the building for the activities of the site operator.
C.

Built Environment
The site lies to the west of the Old Manse, which is a category B listed building and
as such requires consideration having regard to the provisions of STRAT DC 9 and
LP ENV 13a, which would seek to resist new development which is considered to
have an adverse impact upon the setting of a listed building. In this respect, it is
noted that the eastern boundary of the Old Manse is defined by a number of mature
deciduous trees, behind which there is a conifer tree screen. The provisions of
planning permission ref. 06/02446/DET allowed for the erection of a single storey
dwellinghouse positioned between the current application site and the B listed

Page 32

structure. The mature deciduous trees growing within the western verge of the
adjoining pedestrian footpath are multi-trunk specimens which would not be worthy of
protection by means of a tree preservation order, however they do contribute to the
character of the locale. The current proposal does not intimate any requirement to fell
or cut back these trees. However, should they require to be felled at some point in
the future their replanting would be beneficial as the retention of long term tree cover
will assist in the separation of the commercial use with the residential property to the
west. Having regard to the previously established acceptability of developing within
the rear garden area of the Old Manse, and the fact that the current proposal does
not include for any material external alterations to the existing depot building, it is
considered that the current proposal will lead to any significant visual change to the
setting of the Old Manse nor its immediate locale. In coming to this conclusion it is
noted that due consideration has also been given to the probable traffic type/level of
activity that will be generated by the proposed use in comparison to that of the
activity associated with the operation of the existing lawful use of the site as an
ambulance depot.
D.

Road Network, Parking and Associated Transport Matters.
Access to the site is via an existing private access road which connects with Blarbuie
Road, the public highway which forms the sole means of vehicular access from
Lochgilphead town centre to the Mid Argyll Community Hospital and surrounds.
The proposal includes for the reconfiguration of the junction into the site from the
private road and car park, widening the access, and relocating parking to allow any
larger vehicles, including articulated lorries when necessary, to both enter and exit
the junction from Blarbuie Road in a forward gear. The reconfigured parking area will
provide on-site parking and turning for four cars.
The proposals also include for the removal of railings on the western side of the
private access which provide physical separation between users of the pedestrian
footpath and the private access road. It is noted that that the removal of these railings
does not in itself require the benefit of express planning permission. It is further noted
that the railings were provided by the Council at a time when the private access road
was utilised as the means of vehicular access to the old Lochgilphead High School,
and as such it was particularly desirable to have a means of physically separating a
high volume of pupils entering/exiting the site from the high volume of traffic,
including buses, which would occur simultaneously at the beginning and end of the
school day. Whilst this footway remains part of a network of publicly accessible
footpaths, it is noted that the previous situation of simultaneous high volumes of
pedestrian and vehicular traffic are no longer capable of occurring – in this respect
the railings are no longer essential to secure pedestrian safety and are an on-going
maintenance liability for the land owner.
The Area Roads Manager has not raised objection to the proposal on road safety
grounds subject to the imposition of conditions relating to configuration of access and
parking arrangements and their timely provision. In this respect, the proposal is
considered to be consistent with the relevant provisions of LP ENV 1, LP TRAN 4
and LP TRAN 6.
The private access road which serves the site also forms part of a Core Path network
with a pedestrian footpath which runs along the western edge of the road connecting
Blarbuie Road with residential development in the former Lochgilphead High School
site and its through connections to paths on its southern boundary. The current

Page 33

proposals include for the retention of the pedestrian footpath and will not impinge
upon the ability of pedestrians to utilise this route. The proposal is consistent with the
provisions of LP TRAN 1.
E.

Residential Amenity
The application site is located within a predominantly residential area with the site
being adjoining by residential buildings in relatively close proximity to its east, south
and western boundaries. The provisions of policy LP BAD 1 stipulates that ‘Bad
Neighbour’ developments will only be supported where there are no unacceptable
adverse effects on the amenity of neighbouring residents, where the proposal
includes appropriate measures to reduce impact upon amenity, where there are no
significant transport, amenity or public service provision objections, and where
technical standards in terms of parking, traffic circulation, access and servicing are
met in full.
The previous use of the site by the Scottish Ambulance Service for the repair and
maintenance of ambulance service vehicles, as well as for the stationing of
ambulances on call and the training of crew, proved problematical with a number of
complaints having been received by the Council whilst it remained operational. There
related to the impact of these activities on residential amenity, which necessarily
operated around the clock on 7 days a week.
In this instance it is noted that the nearest residential properties to the former
Ambulance Depot are School Lodge, which adjoins the site to the south, and the Old
Manse which lies on the opposite side of the private access road to the west. It is
also noted that extant but unimplemented planning permission (ref. 06/02446/DET)
exists for the erection of a dwellinghouse between the Old Manse and the current
application site. The approved dwelling has been designed to provide an acceptable
level of residential amenity to its occupants in relation to the activities associated with
what was an active Ambulance Depot at that time, this specifically being achieved
with living accommodation incorporated on the opposite side of the building and only
windows of non-habitable rooms facing the former Ambulance Depot.
Whilst it is recognised that traffic movements associated with Class 6 development
has the potential to have a detrimental impact upon residential amenity by virtue of
noise, disturbance and emissions from idling engines it is considered that three
factors render this case unlikely in this particular instance. The first factor being that
the level of activity which can reasonably be undertaken at the site will be
commensurate to the scale of the facility – in this instance the proposed storage
space equates to a very compact 80sqm and whilst this could potentially be extended
without requirement for planning permission by re-arranging the internal layout of the
building, even this is unlikely to result in any significant increase in the level of activity
at the site. Furthermore, the provisions of Classes 12 and 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 provide
deemed permission that effectively ensures that Class 4 (Business) and Class 6
(Storage or Distribution) is interchangeable provided that the floor space involved is
less than 235sqm. By its very definition, Class 4 development is capable of being
undertaken within a residential area without adverse impact upon residential amenity,
so the provisions of the GPDO recognise implicitly that the level of activity associated
with a small scale Class 6 development can also be undertaken without significant
adverse impact upon the amenity of residential property.
The second factor is the location of the site adjacent to Blarbuie Road, which as the
public highway serving the Mid Argyll Hospital, the Argyll and Bute Hospital and a

Page 34

large number of existing and as yet uncompleted residential properties, is already a
busy road which in part generates commercial traffic – the established amenity of the
locale is impacted upon already by noise from traffic, including commercial vehicles,
and in this respect, the small scale nature of the site is not considered likely to give
rise to a significant increase in the overall traffic levels or type of vehicle movements
associated with Blarbuie Road.
Thirdly, the existing lawful use of the site as a depot for the maintenance and repair
of ambulance service vehicles and the stationing of on call ambulances and crew
and, crew training creates potential for a significant level of disturbance to the locale
on a 24/7 basis – it is considered that a small scale storage and distribution use is
likely to be a significantly less intensive use of the site than the existing lawful use as
an ambulance depot, it is noted that the nature of amenity concerns relating to the
movement of vehicles is very similar in nature for both the existing and proposed
uses however the requirement for these activities to be undertaken during restricted
hours of operation must be viewed as securing a significant improvement to the
amenity of the locale and in particular, that of adjoining residential properties. It
should also be borne in mind that former use of this access as the route into and out
of the former Lochgilphead High School entailed significant traffic movements at
certain times of the day, including school buses. That traffic has now ceased with the
relocation of the school and the provision of an alternative means of access to the
housing being developed on the former school site.
Having regard to the above it is noted that the Council’s Environmental Health
Officers initially raised concerns in their response dated 20th December 2011 that the
frequent use of the site by large vehicles, particularly articulated vehicles may have
an adverse impact upon residential amenity, although no objection to the proposal
was raised subject to the imposition of conditions restricting the hours of operation of
the site and control of lighting. Subsequent to these concerns being expressed, the
applicant has provided further clarification of the nature of their intended use, which
confirms that all vehicular movements in and out of the site shall be by fixed bed
lorries of a maximum length 10m or less, except under exceptional circumstances
where an articulated vehicle might be required; this being anticipated to be on no
more than three occasions in any calendar year. The applicant has explained that the
nature of vehicle movements to and from the site is to a large degree predicated by
the small scale nature of the storage accommodation which will be provided at this
facility. Under normal circumstances it will be the practice of the site operator for any
deliveries requiring articulated vehicle movements to be directed to their existing
premises at Kilmory Industrial Estate where a transfer of any goods to a fixed bed
lorry for transfer to the current application site can be undertaken. The applicant has
indicated willingness to accept conditions limiting the manner in which the premises
may be accessed by delivery vehicles. The Area Environmental Health Officer has
subsequently confirmed that the proposed use of the building for storage and
distribution and ancillary office accommodation does not give rise to activities which
would be detrimental to residential amenity, provided that vehicular movements
associated with deliveries/dispatches to/from the site are restricted by time period.
Having regard to the above, it is considered that the proposed re-use of the site for
the proposed purpose of Class 6 (storage and distribution) is capable of being
undertaken without significant detriment to the established amenity of adjoining
residential property or the wider locale and as such is considered consistent with the
relevant provisions of LP ENV 1 and LP BAD 1.

Page 35

F.

Other Policy Considerations
It should be recognised that whilst the site is in the ‘settlement area’ it also lies within
Potential Development Area PDA 12/1, zoned for housing – relating to the former
hospital and school sites. This means that housing would have been be the preferred
solution for the site, but as the Scottish Ambulance Service did not make it available
for redevelopment in association with the wider redevelopment of adjoining land
(having unfulfilled aspirations to retain it as a vehicle maintenance facility at the time),
it has been subsequently sold separately to the current owners, who wish to retain
and use the building for other purposes, rather than seeking to redevelop the site for
housing.
As there is an existing building on the land which is the subject of a sui generis use, it
is reasonable that the owner should seek to establish an alternative beneficial use for
the premises, concomitant with its primarily residential surrounding and its available
means of access. The assessment above concludes that the intended use, with the
recommended restrictions in place, will not impinge upon residential amenity in terms
of traffic and disturbance to any greater degree than the former situation, when this
site was in use as an ambulance depot and the access was in use to serve both that
depot and the former secondary school.
Given the longer term aspiration of the PDA, the shorter-term requirement to use the
site to serve the ongoing development elsewhere within the PDA and the opportunity
this allows for an assessment of the operation of the use, it is considered appropriate
to restrict the period of any permission offered to a short-term temporary consent in
order that the longer-term future of this site may be reviewed along with the
progressive development of the PDA. To this end, it is known that the applicant
intends to use the building primarily for the purpose of facilitating their on-going
building operations on adjoining land, which are expected to continue for a period of
at least two more years.
Whilst the applicant has requested a permanent permission it is the view of the
Planning Authority that, in light of the above, a three year period of permission would
be appropriate to allow the review of the site’s situation having regard to the on-going
development of the PDA within which it lies. A three year period should also provide
sufficient scope for the applicant to continue using the building for the duration of
planned constructions works within the PDA as consented to date.

Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 37

Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 39

Argyll and Bute Council
Agenda
Item 6
Development Services

Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of Handling as required
by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning
Permission in Principle
____________________________________________________________________________
Reference No:

12/00213/PP

Planning Hierarchy:

Local

Applicant:

Scottish Power Plc

Proposal:

Formation of a temporary contractor’s site compound

Site Address:

Land to north of Cruachan Power Station, Taynuilt, Argyll and Bute,
PA33 1AN
____________________________________________________________________________
DECISION ROUTE
(i)
Local Government Scotland Act 1973
____________________________________________________________________________
(A)

THE APPLICATION
(i)

Development Requiring Express Planning Permission
•
•
•
•
•

(ii)

Formation of a temporary contractors site compound for a period of 3 years;
Utilisation of an existing private vehicular access;
Utilisation of 10 existing on-site vehicle parking spaces and associated
turning areas;
Utilisation of an existing private water supply;
Utilisation of an existing septic tank and partial soakaway.

Other specified operations

• None
____________________________________________________________________________
(B)

RECOMMENDATION:

Having due regard to the development plan and all other material planning
considerations, it is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the
conditions and reasons appended to this report.
____________________________________________________________________________
(C)

HISTORY:
96/00776/COU - Change of use of rough ground to form a contractor’s compound and
siting of portakabins – application approved 1st October 1996
02/01205/DET - Renewal of temporary consent 96/00776/COU – formation of a
contractor’s compound – application approved 9th August 2002
02/01941/NMA - Non-material amendment to 02/01205/DET – amendment to number,
size and position of portakabins – application approved 18th November 2002

05/00494/DET - Renewal of previous
temporary
Page
40 consent 02/01205/DET – formation of a
contractor’s temporary site compound – application approved 8th April 2005
08/00425/DET - Erection of a contractor’s temporary site compound – application
approved 10th April 2008
____________________________________________________________________________
(D)

CONSULTATIONS:
Area Roads Manager - Response received 23rd February 2012 – Transport Scotland to
advise
Transport Scotland - Response received 8th February 2012 – no objection

Public Protection - Response received 6th February 2012 – no objection
____________________________________________________________________________
(E)

PUBLICITY:

‘Regulation 20 – Advert Local Application’ from the 9th February 2012 to the 1st March
2012.
____________________________________________________________________________
(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:
Two representations have been received from;
•
•

Miss Rowena Jay, 1 Railway Cottage, Falls of Cruachan, Lochawe (e-mail dated
12.02.2012)
Mr Nigel MacBeath, 1 Railway Cottage, Falls of Cruachan, Lochawe (e-mail
dated 18.02.2012)

The concerns raised are summarised as follows:
•

Part of the application site outlined by the red line belongs to us as the owners of
1 and 2 Railway Cottages.
Comment: Officers have liaised with the applicant’s agent in relation to the issue
of land ownership who confirmed on the 23rd March 2012 that all of the land
forming the application site identified by the red line is within the ownership of
Argyll and Bute Council. Certification to that effect has been supplied and notice
served on the Council’s, Estates Department dated the 25th January 2012.

•

The proposed units to be erected within Area 2 will clearly be in view from my
property so diminishing the quality of the immediate environment and my
enjoyment of it.
Comment: Loss of view does not constitute a material planning consideration. To
the west, the application site is well screened from the properties of 1 and 2
Railway Cottage due intervening semi-rough grazing with small copses of
deciduous trees. It is not considered that the use, which has taken place on the
land since 1996, detracts from the amenity of this property.

The above represents a summary of the issues raised. Full details in relation to the
representations are available on the Council’s Public Access System by clicking on the
following link http://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/content/planning/publicaccess.
____________________________________________________________________________
(G)

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Has the application been the subject
of:
Page

41

(i)

Environmental Statement:

(ii)

An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats)

(iii)

No

Regulations 1994:

No

A design or design/access statement:

Yes

The agent acting on behalf of the applicant submitted a Supporting Statement
which provided an analysis and appraisal of the site associated planning
background and application proposals.
(iv)

A report on the impact of the proposed development e.g. retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc:

No

____________________________________________________________________________
(H)

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

Is a Section 75 agreement required:
No
____________________________________________________________________________
(I)

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31 or
32:

No

____________________________________________________________________________
(J)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
the assessment of the application
Argyll and Bute Structure Plan 2002
Policy ‘STRAT SI 1 – Sustainable Development’
Policy ‘STRAT DC 6 – Development in Very Sensitive Countryside’
Policy ‘STRAT DC 8 – Landscape and Development Control’
Full details of the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan 2002, including proposal
maps and full policy wording can be viewed on the Council’s website by
clicking on the link below:
http://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/argyll-and-butestructure-plan.
Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009
Policy ‘LP ENV 1 – Development Impact on the General Environment’
Policy ‘LP ENV 12 – Water Quality and Environment’
Policy ‘LP ENV 19 – Development Setting, Layout and Design’

Page 42

Policy ‘LP SERV 1 – Private Sewage Treatment Plants and Wastewater (i.e.
drainage) Systems’
Policy ‘LP SERV 4 – Water Supply’
Policy ‘LP TRAN 4 – New and Existing, Public Roads and Private Access
Regimes’
Policy ‘LP TRAN 6 – Vehicle Parking Provision’
Appendix A – Sustainable Siting and Design Principles
Appendix C – Access and Parking Standards
Full details of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009, including proposal maps and
full policy wording can be viewed on the Council’s website by clicking on the link
below:
http://www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/local-plan.
(ii)

List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application having due regard to Annex A of Circular
4/2009
Argyll and Bute Council Sustainable Design Guidance (2006)
Scottish Government Circular 4/1998
Scottish Planning Policy (2010)
The Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006

The Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
____________________________________________________________________________
(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental Impact
Assessment:

No

____________________________________________________________________________
(L)

Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC):

No

____________________________________________________________________________
(M)

Has a sustainability check list been submitted:

No

____________________________________________________________________________
(N)

Does the Council have an interest in the site:

Yes, as owners of the site.

____________________________________________________________________________
(O)
Requirement for a hearing (PAN 41 or other):
No
____________________________________________________________________________
(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations

This application seeks planning permission
Page for
43the formation of a temporary contractor’s
site compound on land to the north of Cruachan Power Station, by Taynuilt.
Temporary planning permission was originally granted on the 1st October 1996 by virtue
of 96/00776/COU for the formation of a contractor’s compound and the siting of
portakabins to serve works associated with the operation and maintenance of Cruachan
Power Station. Since then, there have been numerous applications granted to renew the
temporary planning permission, with the most recent having been granted on the 10th
April 2008 by virtue of 08/00425/DET,which expired on the 30th September 2011.
Having permission for a site suitable for contractor’s site accommodation has provided
an acceptable and effective form of temporary provision in recent years for visiting
contractors working at Cruachan Power Station on various short-term contracts. Whilst
the site has benefitted from a series of temporary consents, occupation of the consented
site has been intermittent throughout that period There has been no record of any
difficulties raised due to the existence and operation of the compound. The number, size
and position of temporary buildings has largely remained the same as that provided for
by the original grant of planning permission in 1996.
Although the site has operated for some 18 years on the basis of a series of temporary
consents and a further 3 year period is now being sought, it is clear that, in the absence
of some alternative arrangement, the ability to provide for contractors’ accommodation,
potentially at short notice, is an integral and ongoing part of the operation of the power
station. Scottish Government Circular 4/1998 ‘The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions’ states at Section 105 that:
“... it will rarely be necessary to give a temporary permission to an applicant
who wishes to carry out development which conforms with the provision of the
development plan”.
and there is a general presumption against supporting ongoing uses by means of a
series of temporary permissions, where the use is not a genuinely temporary
requirement, and it could be more appropriately given a permanent permission with
an obligation to clear and restore the site in the event that the use becomes no
longer required at some point the future.
Although the site lies within ‘Very Sensitive Countryside’ it benefits from a long
established locational need related to a renewable energy development, and
therefore satisfies Parts A and B of Policy STRAT DC 6 of the Argyll and Bute
Structure Plan 2002, and relevant policies of the local plan. In the circumstances, it
is recommended that permission be granted on a permanent rather than a further
temporary basis, but subject to recommended condition 2 which requires
reinstatement in the event that the site has not been occupied for the permitted
purpose during the preceding 18 months.
____________________________________________________________________________
(Q)

Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan:

Yes

____________________________________________________________________________
(R)

Reasons why planning permission should be granted
Having permission for a site suitable for contractor’s site accommodation has provided
an acceptable and effective form of temporary provision in recent years for visiting
contractors working at Cruachan Power Station on various short-term contracts. Whilst
the site has benefitted from a series of temporary consents, occupation of the consented
site has been intermittent throughout that period There has been no record of any
difficulties raised due to the existence and operation of the compound. The number, size
and position of temporary buildings has largely remained the same as that provided for
by the original grant of planning permission in 1996.

The proposal complies with Policies
‘STRAT
Page
44 SI 1’, ‘STRAT DC 6’ and ‘STRAT DC 8’ of
the ‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’ 2002 and Policies ‘LP ENV 1’, ‘LP ENV 12’, ‘LP ENV
19’, ‘LP SERV 1’, ‘LP SERV 4’, ‘LP TRAN 4’ and ‘LP TRAN 6’ of the ‘Argyll and Bute
Local Plan’ 2009. Having regard to Scottish Government Circular 4/1998 – The Use of
Conditions in Planning Permissions, it is appropriate to grant permanent permission
rather than to perpetuate the use by means of a further temporary consent.
____________________________________________________________________________
(S)

Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development Plan

N/A
____________________________________________________________________________
(T)

Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland:

No

____________________________________________________________________________
Author of Report:

Walter Wyllie

Date: 3rd May 2012

Reviewing Officer:

Stephen Fair

Date:

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning and Regulatory Services

Page 45
CONDITIONS AND REASONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION 12/00213/PP
1.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details specified on the
application form dated 25th January 2012 and the approved drawing reference numbers:

•

Plan 1 of 1 (OB.02.01/01)
unless the prior written approval of the Planning Authority is obtained for an amendment to
the approved details under Section 64 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997.

Reason:

2.

In the event that the site has not been occupied for its intended purpose during the course
of a continuous period of 18 months, the permitted use shall be deemed to have ceased
and all structures, containers and materials shall be removed from the site, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, and immediately thereafter the land
shall be reinstated in accordance with details which shall be submitted to agreed in writing
in advance by the Planning Authority.

Reason:

3.

In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the site is reinstated to an appropriate
and satisfactory standard.

This permission relates only to the use of the compound by contractors working within
Cruachan Power Station and associated areas. Any structures, containers or materials
shall only be sited on the land whilst maintenance or other contracted works are ongoing
within Cruachan Power Station and shall be removed within 2 months from the completion
of works on-site.

Reason:
4.

For the purpose of clarity and to ensure that the development is implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

In accordance with the use applied for.

Any structures shall be used only for site offices and storage accommodation and shall at
no time be used for residential purposes.

Reason:

In accordance with the use applied for.

APPENDIX B – RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER 12/00213/PP

Page 46
PLANNING LAND USE AND POLICY ASSESSMENT
A.

Settlement Strategy
This application seeks planning permission for the use of land as a temporary
contractor’s site compound on land to the north of Cruachan Power Station, by Taynuilt,.
With reference to the Argyll and Bute Development Plan 2009, the application site is
situated within the development zone identified as ‘Very Sensitive Countryside’. With
reference to the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan 2002, Policy ‘STRAT DC 6’ states:
“A) Within the Very Sensitive Countryside encouragement will only be given to
specific categories of development on well chosen sites. These comprise:
1. renewable energy related development which is supported by Policies
‘STRAT RE 1’ and ‘STRAT RE 2’.
2. development directly supporting agricultural, forestry, nature
conservation or other established use activity.
B) In exceptional cases a development with a locational need...may be
supported”.
Cruachan Power Station operated by ScottishPower, was the world’s first high head
reversible pumped storage hydro scheme. The proposal is seeking planning permission
for a contractor’s site compound which provides facilities for visiting contractor’s working
at Cruachan Power Station on various short-term contracts, it is evident that there has
been and remains an ongoing locational need for the proposal which will provide support
for the operation and maintenance of an established renewable energy related
development. Therefore, the proposal complies with Policy ‘STRAT DC 6’.

B.

Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development
Cruachan Power Station is located on the shores of Loch Awe situated at the foot of Ben
Cruachan between the settlements of Bridge of Awe to the east and Lochawe to the
west. The application site is located on the northern side of the A85 trunk road situated
directly adjacent to the numerous small scale buildings which form part of Cruachan
Power Station. Situated directly to the north of the application site is the railway line and
to the south the A85 trunk road. Situated directly to the east and west is semi-rough
grazing with small copses of deciduous trees sporadically distributed. Situated further to
the west are the properties of 1 and 2 Railway Cottage.
The application site is predominantly flat within the south eastern section, but gradually
begins to slope in a north-western direction progressing towards the railway line. The
application site measures approximately 1390 metres2 and is permanently occupied by a
transformer compound, a structure with plinths and hatches, a cabin, a portable toilet
cabin and private water supply and foul drainage services. The application site is also
frequently but temporarily occupied by up to 7 mobile modular jack-up units.
With regards to design, the transformer compound, the structure with plinths and
hatches and the portable toilet cabin are predominantly square shaped, flat roofed
structures. The outside walls and roof covering are finished in a mixture of materials
such as timber, concrete, corrugated sheeting and aluminium. The mobile modular units
are proprietary ones purpose designed to provide site accommodation.

Page 47
The site is contained and does not cause evident visual, privacy or amenity impacts
within the immediately surrounding area. The proposal satisfies Policies ‘LP ENV 1’ and
‘LP ENV 19’.
C.

Natural Environment
The application site is situated at the foot of Ben Cruachan which is situated to the north
and Loch Awe to the south. There are no nature conservation designations in respect of
the application site.

D.

Built Environment
To the south the application site there are numerous small scale buildings which
constitute part of Cruachan Power Station. Situated to the west are the properties of 1
and 2 Railway Cottage. The application site is well screened from the A85 trunk road
and the buildings associated with Cruachan Power Station due to an existing horizontal
timber clad ranch fence. To the west, the application site is well screened from the
properties of 1 and 2 Railway Cottage due to intervening semi-rough grazing with small
copses of deciduous trees which are sporadically distributed. The proposal, which
represents a continuation of a use operated intermittently since 1996, causes no
detrimental visual, privacy or amenity issues within the immediately surrounding area
which ensures that the proposal complies with Policies ‘LP ENV 1’ and ‘LP ENV 19’ of
the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009.

E.

Landscape Character
The landform to the north of the application site rises steeply towards Ben Cruachan.
However, to the east, south and west the landform declines in a gradual southerly
manner towards the foreshore of Loch Awe. The land cover of the surrounding area is
predominantly semi-rough grazing with small copses of deciduous trees sporadically
distributed particularly to the west, north and east of the application site which helps
shelter and screen the application site from wider views.
The proposal will not undermine landscape character in this locale nor give rise to any
adverse visual impacts upon the wider landscape. Therefore, the proposal complies with
Policy ‘STRAT DC 8’.

F.

Road Network, Parking and Associated Transport Matters
With regards to vehicular access arrangements, it is proposed to utilise an existing
private vehicular access which is located within the south eastern section of the
application site. The existing private vehicular access leads off of the A85 trunk road.
The Trunk Roads Authority has been consulted and has not objected. The proposal
complies with Policy ‘LP TRAN 4’ of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009.
With regards to on-site vehicle parking and turning arrangements, it is proposed to utilise
10 existing on-site vehicular parking spaces and associated turning areas. The Area
Roads Manager has been consulted and has no objection. The proposal complies with
Policy ‘LP TRAN 6’ of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009.

G.

Infrastructure
With regards to water supply and foul drainage arrangements, it is proposed to utilise an
existing private water supply and an existing septic tank system and partial soakaway,

Page 48
with foul waste discharging to a nearby watercourse.. Public Protection have been
consulted and have raised no objection. The proposal complies with Policies ‘LP ENV
12’ ‘LP SERV 1’ and ‘LP SERV 4’ of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan 2009.

Page 49

Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
Argyll and Bute Council
Development & Regulatory Services

Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as required
by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning
Permission in Principle
____________________________________________________________________________
Reference No:

12/00219/PP

Planning Hierarchy: Local Application
Applicant:

Argyll and Bute Council

Proposal:

Erection of new vehicle workshop, welfare building, glasshouse and bike
shelter including new vehicle entrance and additional parking

Site Address:
Council Maintenance Depot, Luss Road, Helensburgh
____________________________________________________________________________
DECISION ROUTE
(i)
Local Government Scotland Act 1973
____________________________________________________________________________
(A)

THE APPLICATION
(i)

Development Requiring Express Planning Permission
-

(ii)

Erection of new vehicle workshop
Erection of welfare building
Erection of glasshouse and bike shelter
Formation of new internal vehicle entrance to operational area
Additional parking

Other specified operations

- None
____________________________________________________________________________
(B)

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be approved subject to the attached
conditions and reasons.
____________________________________________________________________________
(C)

HISTORY:

99/00021/COU – Change of use of vacant land for storage of skips approved 17
February 1999).
03/01321/NID – Construction of Access (withdrawn 27 May 2004).
04/01005/NID – Construction of access road (approved 27 August 2006)
06/00792/NID - Construction of new Roads and Amenity Services Depot (approved 13
October.2006)
____________________________________________________________________________

Page 52
(D)

CONSULTATIONS:
Area Roads Manager (memo dated 12/04/2012) – No objections subject to the additional
parking provision being in place prior to the new buildings being occupied.

Area Environmental Health Manager – Response awaited at time of writing.
____________________________________________________________________________
(E)
PUBLICITY: Regulation 20 Local Advert (expiry date 30.03.2012)
____________________________________________________________________________
(F)
REPRESENTATIONS: None
____________________________________________________________________________
(G)

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:
(i)

Environmental Statement: No

(ii)

An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats)
Regulations 1994: No

(iii)

A design or design/access statement: Yes

(iv)

A report on the impact of the proposed development eg. Retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: No
Summary of main issues raised by each assessment/report
The site currently has no coherent parking or traffic system other than designated
staff parking and accommodation area. There is no clearly demarcated parking
area for works’ vehicles, which means the space is not being used efficiently. The
proposed site layout applies the principle of segregating the site into staff areas
and operational areas, to encourage a safer and more efficient working
environment for staff.
The proposed new workshop has been positioned to line through with the existing
welfare facilities building. This workshop will provide vehicle inspection bays and
storage for the Parks Department maintenance equipment. The proposed
position of this building provides a physical separation between the staff area and
the operational area. This allows for an access control point between both of
these buildings. With appropriate site management, access to the workshop and
the operational area can be fully controlled. The height of the proposed new
workshop is dictated by the clearance required for the vehicle inspection bays. An
initial 6 metre high clearance is required for all vehicle access doors, as well as
additional clearance internally for the hoisting of vehicles.
A second, smaller building is proposed to the north of the current building to
increase the welfare facilities for the staff. This is in a similar position to part of
the foot print of a building proposed in a previous granted consent (Ref. No.
06/00792/NID). It also keeps the accommodation close to the current welfare
facilities, and reinforces the idea of a designated staff area for the site.

Page 53
Additional parking has been added and a bike shelter is proposed. To aid efficient
and safe vehicle movement within the site, an additional entrance is being
proposed to the operational area.
____________________________________________________________________________
(H)

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

(i)
Is a Section 75 agreement required: No
____________________________________________________________________________
(I)

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31 or
32: No
____________________________________________________________________________
(J)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.
‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’ 2002
STRAT DC 1 – Development within the Settlements
‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ 2009
LP ENV 1 – Impact on the General Environment
LP ENV 19 – Development Setting, Layout and Design
LP BAD 1 – Bad Neighbour Development
LP TRAN 4 – New and Existing Public Roads and Private Access Regimes
LP TRAN 6 – Vehicle Parking Provision
Appendix A – Sustainable Siting and Design Principles
Appendix C – Access and Parking Standards

(ii)

List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of Circular
4/2009.

Argyll & Bute Sustainable Design Guidance (2006)
____________________________________________________________________________
(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental Impact
Assessment: No
____________________________________________________________________________
(L)

Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): No
___________________________________________________________________________
(M)
Has a sustainability check list been submitted: No
____________________________________________________________________________
(N)
Does the Council have an interest in the site: Yes
____________________________________________________________________________

Page 54
(O)
Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): No
____________________________________________________________________________
(P)

Assessment of determining issues and material considerations
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a new vehicle workshop, welfare
building, glasshouse and bike shelter including new internal vehicle entrance and
additional parking within the Council’s existing Depot at Luss Road.
The key building is the proposed vehicle workshop which is 38.5 metres long, 18 metres
wide and 9.5 metres high. It will be located next to the existing Admin building and salt
store and will have metal clad roof and walls. The proposed welfare building will be
located on the western boundary, measuring 11.5 metres long, 10.2 metres wide and 4.2
metres high and will also have metal clad roof and walls. The welfare building will
include showers, toilets and a canteen/briefing room. The glasshouse will also be on the
western boundary measuring 15 metres long, 4.6 metres wide and 3.2 metres high. A
new internal access is proposed with additional parking provision and a bike shelter.
Policy LP ENV 1 covers all development control zones and requires development to be
of an appropriate form, location and scale. Policy LP ENV 19 deals with development
setting, layout and design. The design of developments and structures should be
compatible with the surroundings. Policy LP BAD 1 states that developments classed as
‘bad neighbour’ developments will only be permitted where, inter alia, there are no
significant transport, amenity or public service provision objections. Finally, Appendix A
and Appendix C are applicable. The former sets out advice on location, siting and design
while the latter has guidance on parking provision and access arrangements.
The proposed vehicle workshop is an industrial unit the design of which is partly
informed by its function. As the Design and Access statement indicates, the height is
dictated by the clearance required for the vehicle inspection bays. Six metre high
clearance is required for all vehicle access doors, as well as additional clearance
internally for the hoisting of vehicles. As originally submitted, part of the enlarged parking
area extended into the existing screen planting facing onto the main road. Given the
mass and scale of the proposed vehicle workshop, the loss of screen planting would
have made it visually prominent. Following discussions, the parking layout has been
amended to retain it within the existing site boundary. New parking numbers and layout
have been discussed and agreed with the Area Roads Manager. The new workshop has
been moved 1m west to pull it away from the site boundary and new planting has been
proposed to the east gable end of the workshop to aid screening to Luss Road.
The new workshop will be some 180 metres from the nearest residential property and
will be located within the Council’s existing Depot and close to the main road. It is not
considered that the revised proposals will have any significant transport, amenity or
public service provision impacts. The building will still be visible from the adjoining public
road but with screening retained and additional planting proposed, any increased visual
impact is considered acceptable in this context.

It is considered that the scale and design of the proposed workshop building is
acceptable and accords with Policies LP ENV 1, LP ENV 19, LP BAD 1, Appendix A and
Appendix C of the adopted Local Plan. Similarly, the welfare building and glasshouse
are also acceptable and accord with policy.
____________________________________________________________________________
(Q)
Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: Yes
____________________________________________________________________________

Page 55
(R)

Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle should
be granted

It is considered that the scale and design of the proposed workshop building is
acceptable and accords with Policies LP ENV 1, LP ENV 19, LP BAD 1, Appendix A and
Appendix C of the adopted Local Plan. Similarly, the welfare building and glasshouse
are also acceptable and accord with policy.
____________________________________________________________________________
(S)

Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development Plan

N/A
____________________________________________________________________________
(T)
Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: No
____________________________________________________________________________

Author of Report: Howard Young

Date: 10/05/2012

Reviewing Officer: Richard Kerr

Date: 10/05/2012

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning & Regulatory Services

Page 56
CONDITIONS AND REASONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 12/00219/PP
1.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details specified on the
application form dated 24/11/2011 and the approved drawing reference numbers L(--)001
Rev A, L(--)002 Rev A, L(--)003 Rev A, L(--)004 Rev a L(--)006 Rev A, L(--)010 Rev B and
L(--)015 Rev A unless the prior written approval of the planning authority is obtained for
other materials/finishes/for an amendment to the approved details under Section 64 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.
Reason: For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

2.

Development shall not begin until details of a scheme of hard and soft landscaping works
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Details of the
scheme shall include:
i)
ii)
iii)

location and design, including materials, of walls, fences and gates;
soft and hard landscaping works, including the location, type and size of each
individual tree and/or shrub;
a programme for completion and subsequent on-going maintenance.

All the hard and soft landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the
scheme approved in writing by the Planning Authority. All planting, seeding or turfing as
may be comprised in the approved details shall be carried out in the first planting and
seeding seasons following the commencement of the development unless otherwise
agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.
Any trees or plants which within a period of ten years from the completion of the
development die, for whatever reason are removed or damaged shall be replaced in the
next planting season with others of the same size and species, unless otherwise agreed in
writing with the Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping
3.

The parking provision shown on the docquetted plans shall be in place prior to the
buildings hereby approved being completed or brought into use and shall be retained as
such thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of road safety.

4.

Development shall not begin until samples of materials to be used on external surfaces of
the buildings have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.
Development shall thereafter be carried out using the approved materials or such
alternatives as may be agreed in writing, with the Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to integrate the development into its surroundings.

NOTES TO APPLICANT
1.

The length of the permission: This planning permission will last only for three years
from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within
that period. [See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
(as amended).]

Page 57
2.

In order to comply with Section 27A(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997, prior to works commencing on site it is the responsibility of the developer to
complete and submit the attached ‘Notice of Initiation of Development’ to the Planning
Authority specifying the date on which the development will start.

3.

In order to comply with Section 27B(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 it is the responsibility of the developer to submit the attached ‘Notice of
Completion’ to the Planning Authority specifying the date upon which the development
was completed.

Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59

230800

Track
Mi
lig
u
s B

Drain

rn

El S ub St a

ETL

Tr ack

El P s

ETL

Res erv oir No 2

Issu es

Issues

Issu es

Si nks
Sl uic e
Si nks

96.3 m
FB
Drai

Cycl e

Tr ack

n

Ove fr l ow

Dr ai n

Tr ack

ET L

Issu es
8

ET L

A

8

1

Dr ai n

DW

103. 0m

D

Dra in

Issu es

O

A

R
L

U

S

S

Issu es
Issu es

Is u s
e
TL
E
W
ad
r

Bd

Rfeus
e T
i p( p
ubl ic)

EL
T

1

y

TL
E

TL
E

S
i n
k s
7

lB c
a k h il P la n ta tio n

P
ond
a k
r c
T

S
i n
k s
E
l
S
u b S ta

0
1 .6 m
4

4

a
Ph
t

S
i n
k s

5
rD

a

in

RD

EN
S

8

Rs
eervoir No 1

Y
FF
EG
A

r
Pk
Cr a
a

lig s

Bu

n
r

S
i n
k s

M il

0
4

CL

un
ma d o
rD u

3
4

E
RD

L
od
ge

US
L

O
SR

AD

Wo
o d s id e
rD

rD u
ma d o
un

ia

n
C lc
y

L
od
ge

a k
r c
e T

a
Cr P
a k
r
Is u s
e

S
l u
ic e

F
B

E

OL

7
1

QU

O
HU

IH L

N

V IE
W

8

T
SR
E

F
B

DW

D IR

ET

VE

1

6
1

ER
C

2
1

P
UP

9

R IV

1

6

We
ts e
d
r u
ne
s

S
l u
ic e

Blackhi l Pl ant ati on
rD a

0
1 .3 m
1
in

S
i n
k s

F
B

F
i lt reSt ation
E
SS
O
f fi e
c s

T
he Hil lHouse

9

W
a

T
a ns
k

d
r

B

4

d

y

5

4
9 .8 m

1 0
5

0
2

F
oo
t B ir d
ge
8

y c
o
ur
t

41

3
2

T
he Pa doc k
2

Ga
r

Dp
eot

E
l Su
b S ta

2 a

1 5
3

6

6

c l
if e

41

1 6
4

B irn

2

4

E
KN

0
2 a

NE

DY

DR

IV E

h
D u h il
o
Hu s e

C
L
I N
S

H IL

R
ST

A IR

EE

T

T
h e P u mp H o
us e

F
B

6
8 .3 m
LD
IR

i l
uh
e ts re D h
W

V
E

8

T
SR
EE
T

WE
ST
DU
H

21

7

31

3

4

N

21 9

F
B
Wa
l e
k r 's R s
e t

F
B
L
O

D

L

SU

S

R

O

A

D T(r

ca

k

)

re D
h
u

1 4
3

F
B

21 8

W
e ts

6
2

P
UP

h
i l

a8

ER
C

21

OL

QU

5
2

O
HU

o
Cr n
ga bb
i e

tS u
r n
a

rD a

4

E
l
S
u b S ta

T
r
in

Blak
chi l Plantait on

F
B

a

kc

9
1

684000

2

684000

31

2
1 6

L
is m
o

0
1 .8 m
1

e
r

21

5

1

DH

UH

7
1

5
1

WE
ST

IL L
DR

We
i r

IV E

0
2

5

S
I C
NL

6
7 .8 m

IA R

L
AN

1
E

We
i r
M il

L
B

Bu

lig s

r
n

9
1

F
B
We
i r
12

2

4

rD ia

1

We
i r

n

ha
d
r

1 7

3

2
1

1
T

1

2

P
ond

IV E

7

Is u s
e

3

6
1

9

8

DR

n

rD ia

E

8
1

4
1

SR
D IV

3

G
LA

7

O
DU

4

AS

6

GL

2
7

R
C A WF O R D D
R IV E

IV E
EA
S

7

O
DU

T
H E ME A
D O WS

3
1

8

LD
R

T
r c
a k

H IL

1

1

7

H
DU

0
1

T
he
O cr

2

O
DU

1

GL

AS

IV E

6
4

2

DR

3
1

6
1

F
B

S
i n
k s

3

25

3
1

3
7 .1 m

1

B
A

6

Is u s
e
O

M

2

R

B

2

C

R

S
E

C

E

D

Y

N

T

NR
CA

A IR

U
DN

S
I N
L
C

C

6

D IR
A IR

QU

R

OA

ET

y
Bd

ST
RE

W
a d
r

o
Ct g
a e

T

VE

5

ET
N

IV E
EA
S

2

O
HU

3
1
DR

S
I N
L
C

M
i li g
s
o
Ct g
a e
4

1

1
8
2

P
UP

2
1

ER
C

E

21

AS

1

2

43

OL

GL

12

T
SR
E

O
DU

4

L
B

3
1

IV E

5
3

DR

1
2

OX

o
N tr h M il g
s

2

2
1

WE
ST
LE
NN

W
e s t

3

u
Dn g
on
y e
S
onu
s

u
Dn g
on
y e

5
1

2

34

6
2

6

1

1
9 .7 m

5

T
k
06

9

3

ON

RO

M

E
C

5

ID X
A

1

93

VE

3
2

D IR

L

DE

A
C

RI

M

IK L
B

C

AD

WA
N

2

H

2

1

D

6

2

9

2
3

2

1

5

iK n d
e d ra

L

R

I

E
V

rD a in

1

1

A
N
P
L

6

51
3

C

5
2

A

5
1
E

3
1
9

1

6

2
2
6

4

1
4
2

CE

7
1

lE S
u
bS
a
t

NT

2
1

2

NC

1
a

9

A
BI

5

2

1

E
l Su
b S ta

Gol f C our se

Golf Cour se

1

1

O

R
DI E
V

5
1

0
1

1 6

MN
UR

8
1 a

7
2

MC
A

6

8
6

4

6
2

LA
C

8
1

HL

LA
CH
LN
O
RA
A
D

O
BST O
NDR

3
1

N
A

MC
A

1
6 .1 m

IV E

D
A

Bd

T
S

W
a d
r

E WE

1
4

R
D IV

RO

2

y

RO

4
1

U
MN

ns
b
ur
g
h
e rS
t ta
io n

2
0

e
H le

p
Up

7

a
2
E

7
3

R IV

2

UD

8

SS
DH

0
1

1 8

RE
S

1 a
1

TR
O

A
EST

2
8 .3 m

4
1

TR
O

SS
DU
H

SR
O

OA

D

3
2

3
1

D IR

VE

U
B

T

9
T

A

V

O
LD

E
AS

5
2

6
2

0
7

L
e ig h

LU
S

L
EV
ER
R

6
1

5
2 a

l s
e id
e

o
C t ta g
e

AD

1

9
4

lig s

2
3
M il

8
2

2

1
5

7
2

E
l
S
u b S ta
m
Ab

5
E

U
N

82

1
2

1

7

E

3
1

S
i n
k s

0
1

1

3
0
ET

8

1 3

T
( a
r k
c )

1
2

2

Bu

5
2

n
r

T
r c
a k

9
1

1 4

2

5
2

8
3

A IR

4
1

8
6

ST
RE

T
a lg
a tr h

6

S
I N
L
C

o
Ca c h
o
Hu s e

9
1

7
7
1

CE

QU

D IR

VE

F
B

3

1 a

F
B

Is u s
e

3
7
Is u s
e

5
8
S
i n
k s
Is u s
e

a
Hz v
y ie w
1
6

5
6

9
4

2

RT

3
7

7
3

6

7
4
5
2

5
3

3
6

D IR V E

3
1

0
9

R
B O D IC K

3
2

0
1

1

5

1

9
2

2

7
1

9
2

5
3

1
4

1

0
3

3
0
1 7

5
1

4

KEN
T CO
U

9
5

1

1
2 a

ET
ST
RE
BY
ER
C
TA
B
9
1

E
AS

WY
ND
S
W
E
R
N
AD

S
T
54

6

2

T
SRE
ET
OT T
E
H
CARL

1

E
OV
EG
R
3

PE
LC
AR

0
2
8
1

93

LA
C

E

8
4

2
3

0
1

2

6

1

Is u s
e

8
2
6
2

2
1
3

1
2

RP

S
i n
k s

2

IV E

0
6

4
1

DR

E
l Su
b S ta

1
2

F
I H
SE

41

ON

0
2

3

7

H
CA

34

Is u s
e

3
1

9

2

8

2
1

Path

6
1

8
1

9
1

2
8

5

4
3

8

6
1 a

2

4

EP
AK
R

7

WN

1

3
1

1
3

L
A ML A S H P L
ACE

DO

6
3

1

a
1

3
2

0
1

3
1

7
1

a
4

SD
O

1
6

2
1
2
1 0

3
1 4

1:24,000
4
1

L
AN

3

7
2

4
1 1

35

34
53

5
2
1
5

2

O
RM

5

9

0
1 9

1

2
3

0
1 a
9

1 9

4
5

2
7

E

3
4

1

MA

71

F
B
2

n
r

5
2

u

a

1

7
8
s

4
1

B

73

2
2

3

6

0
1 4

73

OD
A

8
3

53

1
2

L AC

1

E
l
S
u b S ta

9

R
DU

3

b
1

AR

4
6

E
l Su
b S ta

G
O L F H IL L D R IV E

2

1

1

n
e le
e

3

r d
e n
s
5

RI

5
1 9

1
2

G
a s
G
ov

1 to
1 6

e G
a

V
I C
T
O

T ON
P

L
B

1

4
6

L
a n
s d
ow
n
lb e
tr T
e r
a c
e

4
7

HOR

4
5 .0 m

8
4 .7 m
rA d

7

2

S
i n
k s

P ir
n
c e
A

2

8

5
1

4
5 .6 m

Is u
s e s
9

4
3 .3 m

a
2

4
1 7

6
5 .5 m

6
4

5
1
1

T
he L
in d n
e s

E
l Su
b S ta

P
L ACE

5

F
B

2

NT

5

8
5 .8 m

63

CE

O
C R R IE

1
7

4

E
RS

4
3

AC

1

2

E
l
S
ub
S
t a

7
1 to
2 2

1

RI

2

T

0
5 .9 m

S
i n
k s

E
l Su
b S ta

P
l y
a go
r und
iH lc r s
e t
a
1

1

0
1 c6

Sinks

a
4
IV C
T
O

W
a d iM il ig

3
2

D

EP
AK
R

2

3

8

RA
L O

0
1 b
6

WN

1 5

0
1

L

0
1 a
6

SD
O

E
l
S
u b S ta

0
3

IH

1

1 0

3
1 a

4
- 1
1

D IR V E

82

1 a
9

R

ET
9
4 .8 m

F
B

L
AN

MC
A H R IE

3

3

E

6

ST
RE

T

BY

E

2
4

S
t An d
r e ws
O
RM

S

ER
C

XP
LA
C

1

u
Ce Co
t ta g
e
3
1

E
A

0
1 6

1 0

TA
B

NO

2
1

S
AN

62

1 c
0

A
ES

Is u s
e

0
1 8

3
4 .1 m

1 3

0
2

2
8
4

0
5 .1 m

u
B r to n M il l

4

1 1
4

2
5

Trac k

o
B w li n g G e
r n
e

a
2

0
1 9

2
1

a
9

1
4 .1 m

VE

6
3

1

a
H p ln
a d
o
Ct g
a e

4
3

0
5

S
i n
k s
0
7 .0 m

G
r e n
P
a k
r
1

o
B w li n g G e
r n
e

TR
E

7
9
KEN
T DR
I

3
6

0
5 .3 m

7
4 b

Pond

T
he F
i e
v s o
C u tr
ET

us
e

2

a
6

1 0

ST
RE

Is u s
e

F
S

1

1
2

O
CL

1 a
1

3
bH
o

S
i n
k s

us
e

3
2

O
X

NT

HARDYHI L L

a
1

C lu

BY

6

4

O
RM

0
1 0

UN

TL
EN
N

1
7 .0 m
u
D n lu c e

RE
S

0
2

ER
C

4
2

TA
B

1
7

ST
E
RE

5

NC

7

E
AS

2
8

a
7
T

4
1

HO

A
ES

3
1
A
BI

0
5 .6 m

bH
o

3

ET

C lu

y

A
E S T E R IH L L
O
RAD

4
7
4

Bd

VE

E
l
S
u b S ta
YS
T
RE

9
1 1

W
a d
r
D IR

9
1

1 a
2

MB

2

SS
DU
H

h
Ba l a

3

p
Up
e r L
ok
c ls y
e
RO

0
2

TR
O

6
1

A
ES

o
Dr u
s A

ER
C

Is u s
e

2

S
p ra o
r w
c o
r ft
1

WE
ST
AB

6

lig

2
3

il

91

0
3

1

4
3

0
1 5

M

a
1

2

ET

E

7
1
6
4

P
I RM
NI L L P
L ACE

1
5

LA
C

53
3
a

ST
RE

a2

5
4 .5 m

DF
n

ER
T

1

0
1 2

a

L
AB

W
a te fr la l

8
5

o
C mmu
n it y
e
Cn e
tr
S
i n
k s

Of ices

L
AC

IR V E

1

T

OL

MP

2
1
0

P
l y
a go
r und

urn

Reservoir No 1

Mil

lig
sB

Sinks

L US

Sluice

FB

AD

cl
Cy

Car Park
FB

O
SR

a
e Tr

ck

Application Site
Sluice

103.1m

FB

Filter Station

ESS

Offices

Tanks

150

94.8m

Foot Bridge

8
14

Depot

14 6

FB

FB

FB

FB

Dr

Tra
ck

Blackhill Plantation

ain

FB

Weir

11

rn

19

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright 2009. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or Civil Proceedings. OS License No.100023368, 2009.
2

ch
ar d

21

eO
r

DRIVE

1

10

12

Bu

1

ligs

Th

Mil

230800

Location Plan relative to
Application Ref: 12/00219/PP
Date: 16.05.2012

Scale: 1:2,500

°

Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 61

Agenda Item 8
Argyll and Bute Council
Development Services

Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as
required by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning
Permission or Planning Permission in Principle

Reference No:
Planning Hierarchy:
Applicant:
Proposal:
Site Address:

12/00564/PP
Local
Argyll and Bute Council
Installation of a biomass boiler including plant room and woodchip
store
Islay High School and Bowmore Primary School, Bowmore, Isle of
Islay

DECISION ROUTE
Local Government Scotland Act 1973

(A)

THE APPLICATION
(i)

Development Requiring Express Planning Permission

• Erection of buildings to house new biomass boiler, control plant and
woodchip fuel store;

• Installation of security fencing;

• Construction of area of hard surface;
• Construction of retaining walls;
• Access alterations;
• Underground pipework connections.
(ii)

Other specified operations
• Relocation of existing gates and fencing.

(B)

RECOMMENDATION:
Having due regard to the Development Plan and all other material considerations, it
is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions and
reasons appended to this report.

(C)

CONSULTATIONS:
West of Scotland Archaeology Service
Area Roads Engineer

(01.05.12)

Environmental Health

(26.04.12)

(18.04.12) No objection.
No objection.

No objection subject to condition.

Page 62
(D)

HISTORY: None relevant

(E)

PUBLICITY:
ADVERT TYPE: Regulation 20 Advert Local Application
EXPIRY DATE: 10.05.2012

(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:
(i)

(G)

Representations received: None

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:

(H)

(i)

Environmental Statement:

No

(ii)

An appropriate assessment under the
Conservation (Natural Habitats) Regulations
1994:

No

(iii)

A design or design/access statement:

No

(iv)

A report on the impact of the proposed
development eg. Retail impact, transport
impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage
impact etc:

No

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
Is a Section 75 agreement required:

No

(I)

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31
or 32: No

(J)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.
‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’ 2002
STRAT DC 1 – Development within the Settlements
STRAT DC 9 – Historic Environment and Development Control
‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ 2009
LP ENV 1 – Impact on the General Environment

Page 63
LP ENV 17 – Impact on Sites of Archaeological Importance
LP ENV 19 – Development Setting, Layout and Design
LP BAD 1 – Bad Neighbour Development
LP REN 3 – Other (Non-Wind) Forms of Renewable Energy Related
Development
(ii)

List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in
the assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of
Circular 4/2009.
•

N/A

(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental
Impact Assessment: No

(L)

Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): No

(M)

Has a sustainability check list been submitted: No

(N)

Does the Council have an interest in the site: Yes

(O)

Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): No

(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations
Planning permission is sought for a Biomass Heating Plant to serve the adjacent Islay
High School and Bowmore Primary School, Bowmore, Isle of Islay
The proposal is consistent with the provisions of policy LP REN 3 which seeks to
encourage non-wind renewable energy development where this is compatible with
the amenity of its surrounds and does not give rise to an adverse impact upon
infrastructure.
Furthermore, the proposal will not give rise to detrimental impacts upon the amenity
of the locale and is of appropriate scale, design, finishes and siting having regard to
the setting of the school buildings within the Bowmore settlement area.

(Q)

Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: Yes

(R)

Reasons why Planning Permission or Planning Permission in Principle Should
be Granted:
The proposal is consistent with the provisions of policy LP REN 3 which seeks to
encourage non-wind renewable energy development where this is compatible with
the amenity of its surrounds and does not give rise to an adverse impact upon
infrastructure.

Page 64
Furthermore, the proposal will not give rise to detrimental impacts upon the amenity
of the locale and is of appropriate scale, design, finishes and siting having regard to
the setting of the school buildings within the Bowmore settlement area.

(S)

Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development
Plan
N/A

(T)

Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: No

Author of Report:

Tim Williams

Date:

10th May 2012

Reviewing Officer:

Peter Bain

Date:

11th May 2012

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning

Page 65
CONDITIONS AND REASONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 12/00564/PP

1.

The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with the details specified
in the application form dated 13th March 2012; and the approved drawings numbered 1
of 7 to 7 of 7; and stamped approved by Argyll and Bute Council.
Reason: in order to ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance
with the details submitted and the approved drawings.
Standard Note: In terms of condition 2 above, the Council can approve minor variations
to the approved plans in terms of Section 64 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997 although no variations should be undertaken without obtaining the
prior written approval of the Planning Authority. If you wish to seek any minor variation
of the application, an application for a non material amendment (NMA) should be made
in writing to Planning Services, Dalriada House, Lochgilphead, PA31 8ST which should
list all the proposed changes, enclosing a copy of a plan(s) detailing these changes
together with a copy of the original approved plans. It should be noted that only the
original applicant can apply for an NMA under the terms of Section 64 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997. Any amendments deemed by the Council to be
material, would require the submission of a further application for planning permission.

2.

The use hereby permitted shall not commence until full particulars and details of a
scheme for the dispersion of atmospheric pollutants from the development, including a
calculation of the required flue heights from the boiler plant, has been submitted and
approved by the Planning Authority and the development shall not be carried out
otherwise than in accordance with any approval given.
Reason: In order that the Planning Authority may be satisfied as to the arrangements
for preventing loss of amenity to neighbouring premises due to atmospheric pollutants.

NOTE TO APPLICANT
•

The length of the permission: This planning permission will last only for three years
from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started within that
period. [See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended)].

•

In order to comply with Section 27A(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997, prior to works commencing on site it is the responsibility of the developer to
complete and submit the attached ‘Notice of Initiation of Development’ to the Planning
Authority specifying the date on which the development will start.

•

In order to comply with Section 27B(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 it is the responsibility of the developer to submit the attached ‘Notice of Completion’
to the Planning Authority specifying the date upon which the development was
completed.

Page 66

Page 67
APPENDIX A – RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER: 12/00564/PP
PLANNING LAND USE AND POLICY ASSESSMENT
A.

Settlement Strategy
In terms of the adopted ‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’, the site is within the ‘small town’
of Bowmore where Policy STRAT DC 1 of the approved ‘Argyll and Bute Structure
Plan’ gives encouragement to ‘small scale’ development which is compatible with an
essentially rural settlement location on appropriate infill, rounding off and
redevelopment sites, subject to compliance with other relevant local plan policies.
The provisions of policy LP REN 3 seek to support non-wind renewable energy
development, including biomass, in forms, scales and locations where it will promote
the aim of sustainable development, where servicing, electricity distribution and
access impacts are acceptable, and all other material considerations, including the
Council’s international and national obligations, are satisfactorily addressed.

B.

Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development
Planning permission is sought for a 400 kilowatt biomass boiler and woodchip fuel
store to serve the adjacent Islay High School and Bowmore Primary School. The
proposed works comprise of a boiler-room building, fuel storage silo, underground
pipework connections, access improvements, fencing, retaining walls and enabling
works. The purpose of the development is to provide hot water to feed into the
heating and hot water systems serving the adjacent school buildings.
The application site forms a small part of an existing embankment immediately west
of the Primary School, east of an existing school playing field and south east of the
existing school car park. The proposed development would be cut into this
embankment thus reducing its appearance but necessitating the construction of
retaining walls at both the northern and southern ends of the proposed new energy
centre compound.
The development consists of a new energy centre compound; a rectangular area of
hardstanding of approximately 113 square metres partly dug into an existing
embankment that runs along the eastern boundary of the school sports pitches and
adjoining the primary school car park. The existing embankment rises by
approximately 2.5 metres from the level of the sports pitches and its localised
excavation will necessitate two relatively minor retaining walls to the north and south
extremities of the energy centre compound and following the sloping contours of the
embankment.
Within the area of hardstanding bracketed to the north and south by the proposed
retaining walls would be a new boiler house building and an adjoining fuel store
building.
The proposed boiler house building would be a block walled structure, externally clad
with white coloured roughcast render and would measure 5.9 metres by 3.8 metres in
area and would have a very shallow roof structure resulting in a maximum height of 4
metres above the excavated ground level. A 250mm diameter flue would project
through the roof of the boiler house building to a height of one metre. This building
would contain the biomass boiler itself, an air compression unit and the various
control panels. The boiler house building would have a light grey coloured roller
shutter door to one end elevation and an aluminium double access door to the side
elevation facing the playing fields (yet within the proposed fenced compound).

Page 68
Immediately adjacent and partly attached to the boiler house building would be a
proposed wood-chip fuel store building. This would also be of blockwork construction
with a white roughcast render finish and would measure some 10 metres by 3.5
metres in area but would have a maximum height of only 2.5 metres to a flat roof.
This flat roof would incorporate two sliding fuel delivery access hatches and the top of
the fuel store building would be approximately level with the surface of the adjoining
primary school car park; an arrangement made possible by siting the energy centre
compound within an excavated section of the existing embankment and taking
advantage of the change in levels between the playing fields and the primary school.
Fuel deliveries would thus be facilitated by accessing the fuel store from the adjacent
school access road.
The energy centre compound would be surrounded by a continuous 2 metre high
galvanised railing fence with access gates to both the east elevation (for fuel
deliveries) and the west elevation (for access to the boiler room building).
The proposals are considered to be of a suitable form, scale and design,
incorporating materials which will ensure the development integrates acceptably into
its surroundings and will not materially detract from the character and appearance of
the area. As such, the development is considered consistent with the provisions of
Local Plan policies LP ENV 1 and LP ENV 19.
Although the application site falls within a wider area acknowledged as potentially
important for archaeology, this is a previously developed site within the operational
area of two adjoining schools. The West of Scotland Archaeology Service has raised
no objection to the development and there is therefore no conflict with Development
Plan policies STRAT DC 9 or LP ENV 17.
The proposed development raises no access, servicing or infrastructure issues and is
not considered likely to lead to any environmental concerns given the location of the
site and the separation distance between it and the nearest dwellinghouse. The
development area is well located within the operational grounds of two adjacent
schools and the Council’s environmental health manager has advised that the
proposed development is unlikely to result in any pollution or noise issues, provided
an assessment of potential atmospheric pollutant control measures is carried out and
any recommendations implemented before the biomass system is first brought into
use. This can be achieved by the use of a suitably worded planning condition
ensuring that the proposal can be operated in compliance with the provisions of LP
BAD 1.

e
gl
in
Sh
Sh
in
gl
e

M

Bo u
lders

2.6m

The Inns

9

Sh
in
gl
e

&

Slipway

6
A 84

nd
Sa

ud

PH

do n

e

U
SQ

L in

gla

sH

o

1

m

to 3

D ou

E

i
Sw

Sh in gle

ald

AR

in e
Pipe L

m

e
gl
in
le
Sh
ng
i
Sh

Dun

THE

pe
Pi

Slipway

MLW

Page 69

g
in

Distillery

ol
Po

Tank

4.2m
WB
42

PC
ESS

d
in

ET
TR E

Distillery
House

OL
Ni

Ro
o

Rhuval

e

Du

Wr Twr

1:250,000
11

Donald
Caskie Sq
5

Fire
Engine
Station

2

e
ad

l

g
ag
hr

d in
ne

nb
Be

Battery Hill

8

New
House

a

L
si d ks
ry
d e in
ille
La S
st
Di

3

IN S

HO
SC

Bowmore
House

T
EE

MA

R
ST

k

ie

1

4
3

3

6
5

H
SC

O
OD R

WP

L

19

Ashley

4

An Cala
Beag

AD

Millhouse

3

Cn o

se
H ou

air e
a-F
c-N

New

El Sub Sta

WO

1

RO
SS

Islay High School

Ivy
Cottage

End
Cottage

MO

S
RA

ET
TR E

Ban

7

9

FL O

16
17

10 6

12
to
15

7

NE

10 5

-n aTig h is in
h- O

Corran

11

LA

1
The

9

New Dairy
98

2
y
D a ir

96

L
OO

Application Site

Cnoc Mor̀

45

Ban

ew
Vi
n
na
an
th

ho

l
aa

F
na

th
Pa

Car Pk

6

h

ch

&

e
h
id
us
ha
Ho
ac
nd
tE
es
W

e
gl
in
Sh

Dh

12a

51

14

TCB

47

12

El
Sub Sta

34

18

Bowmore
Primary School

6

40

23

1

41

46

Post

Football Pitch

29

24

Stanalane

Distillery
Lade

&

Mo

ck
Ro

e
gl
in
h
S

Lo

Tig

Well

ck
Ro

TCB

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright 2009. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
Warehouses
may lead to prosecution or Civil Proceedings. OS License
No.100023368, 2009.

Location Plan relative to
Application Ref: 12/00564/PP
Date: 11.05.12

Scale: 1:2,500

°

Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 71

Agenda Item 9

Argyll and Bute Council
Development and Infrastructure Services
Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as
required by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning
Permission or Planning Permission in Principle
_________________________________________________________________________
12/00663/PP

Reference No:

Planning Hierarchy: Local application.
Applicant:

Toward Sailing Club

Proposal:

Erection of 5 kilowatt wind turbine (15 metres high to blade tip).

Site Address:
Toward Sailing Club, Toward, Dunoon
_________________________________________________________________________
DECISION ROUTE
(i)
Local Government Scotland Act 1973
_________________________________________________________________________
(A)

THE APPLICATION
(i)

(ii)

Development Requiring Express Planning Permission
•

Erection of wind turbine (Evance R9000 5kw); mounted on a 12.3 metre
high monopole, three blades 2.75metres in length, 15 metres to blade tip
height;

•

Associated concrete foundation.

Other specified operations

• Installation of underground cabling.
_________________________________________________________________________
(B)

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions,
reasons and advisory notes set out below.
_________________________________________________________________________
(C)

HISTORY:

Planning permission (06/01155/DET) for the formation of a concrete slipway was
granted on 14 August 2006 and implemented.
_________________________________________________________________________
(D)

CONSULTATIONS:
Public Protection (response date 12 April 2012): No objections in respect of noise
and shadow flicker.

Page 72
NATS NERL Safeguarding (response dated 5 April 2012): No safeguarding
objections. Advisory note recommended.
Ministry of Defence (expiry date 23 April 2012): No response.
Estates Department (expiry date 15 May 2012): No response.
Historic Scotland (response dated 2 May 2012): No objections in principle. Given
small scale of turbine, no adverse impacts on setting of the Castle Toward designed
landscape or Toward Castle.
_________________________________________________________________________
(E)

PUBLICITY:
Regulation 20(1) Advert (publication date 13 April 2012, expiry 4 May 2012).

(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:
No letters of representation have been received.

(G)

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Environmental Statement: No
An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats)
Regulations 1994: No
A design or design/access statement: Yes
A Design and Access Statement has been submitted together with calculations
and other manufacturer’s specifications.
The supporting statement indicates that it is Toward Sailing Club’s intention to
register this renewable project under the Government’s ‘Feed in Tariffs’ (FITs)
scheme and will have the capacity to cut the club’s energy costs, generate a
surplus income stream for the Club, reduce the Club’s dependency on Council
and other grants and enable the Club to continue its programme of community
sail training for adults and young people.
Other renewables were considered (i.e., solar photovoltaic panels and ground
source heat pumps) but these were ruled out in favour of a wind turbine on a
site that is considered to record high wind speeds.
The Club leases the ground from the Council and an amendment to the lease
to incorporate a renewable project was agreed at the Area Committee on 6
December 2011.
A design solution was agreed for a small wind turbine on the site that complies
with the Council’s Local Plan policies and Scottish Ministers support for
renewables.
The proposed tower height to the hub is only 12 metres (the smallest option
available) and with a 2.75 blade length the whole structure is less than 15
metres high where the Clubhouse is 8 metres high.
The manufacturer’s brochure indicates that this type of turbine could offset
around 7900 tonnes per annum of CO2 emissions from existing energy
generation.

Page 73
A series of photomontages have also been submitted to demonstrate the low
visual impact of the wind turbine that would be coloured dark grey.
(iv)

A report on the impact of the proposed development e.g. Retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: Yes

An Acoustic Data Summary from Evancewind has been submitted in support
of the proposal. It is stated that quiet operation is a key advantage of the
R9000 together with safeguarding distances for residential properties.
_________________________________________________________________________
(H)

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

(i)
Is a Section 75 agreement required: No
_________________________________________________________________________
(I)

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31
or 32: No
_________________________________________________________________________
(J)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.
Argyll and Bute Structure Plan 2002
STRAT SI1 Sustainable Development;
STRAT DC5 Development in Sensitive Countryside;
STRAT DC8 Landscape and Development Control;
STRAT DC9 Historic Environment and Development Control;
STRAT RE1 Wind Farm / Wind Turbine Development
Argyll and Bute Local Plan (August 2009)
Policy LP ENV 1 Development Impact Setting, Layout and Design including Appendix
A Sustainable Siting and Design Principles;
Policy LP ENV 10 Development Impact on Areas of Panoramic Quality;
Policy LP ENV 11 Development Impact on Historic Gardens and Landscapes;
Policy LP ENV13(a) Development Impact on Listed Buildings;
Policy LP ENV 19 Development Setting, Layout and Design including Appendix A
Sustainable Siting and Design Principles;
Policy LP BAD 1 Bad Neighbour Development;
Policy LP REN 1 Wind Farms and Wind Turbines;
Policy LP REN 2 On-Site Commercial and Domestic Wind Turbines.

(i) List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of Circular 4/2009.
SPP, Scottish Planning Policy, 2010
Annex to Planning Advice Note 45: Renewable Energy Technologies
Micro Generation Domestic Turbines Briefing Note, 2010
Micro renewables and the natural heritage, SNH, 2009

Page 74
Argyll and Bute Landscape Wind Capacity Study (January 2012)
_________________________________________________________________________
(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental
Impact Assessment: No
_________________________________________________________________________
(L)

Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): No
_________________________________________________________________________
(M)
Has a sustainability check list been submitted: No
_________________________________________________________________________
Does the Council have an interest in the site: Yes. Argyll and Bute Council lease
the site to Toward Sailing Club.
_________________________________________________________________________
(N)

(O)
Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): No
_________________________________________________________________________
(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations
This application is for a small wind turbine to be sited close to Toward Sailing Club’s
clubhouse. The reason for the wind turbine is to reduce running costs for the club
whilst generating an income from surplus electricity. Other renewable options have
been ruled out in favour of a wind turbine which is the smallest option available in
order to mitigate any visual impact. In terms of scale and siting, the turbine would be
no greater than 15 metres to blade tip and located against a backdrop of the
clubhouse building, associated mast and flagpole structures and surrounding mature
trees. Whilst the site of the wind turbine is flanked by the Category B-listed Toward
Quay and Category B-listed Castle Toward Gate Lodge, the visual impact will be
reduced by the presence of the Sailing Clubhouse and other buildings, mature trees
and the use of a dark grey colour for the wind turbine which is not considered to
present an obtrusive or conspicuous object in the landscape.

For the reason above, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in scale, siting
and design. The application requires to be determined by Committee due to Council
ownership of the site.
_________________________________________________________________________
(Q)
Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: Yes
_________________________________________________________________________
(R)

Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle
should be granted
The proposed wind turbine and associated works would have a limited visual impact
in the surrounding landscape and consistent with policies STRAT SI1, STRAT DC5,
STRAT DC8, STRAT DC9 and LP STRAT RE1 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Structure
Plan’; and to policies LP ENV1, LP ENV 10, LP ENV11, LP 13(a), LP ENV 19, LP
BAD 1 and LP REN 1 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ (2009). As the proposed
development is considered to be temporary in nature, a condition restricts the use of
the turbine to twenty years.

Page 75
The proposed development would accord with the policies above and there are no
material considerations which would justify refusal of permission.
_________________________________________________________________________
(S)

Reasoned justification for a departure from the provisions of the Development
Plan n/a
_________________________________________________________________________
(T)
Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: No
_________________________________________________________________________
Author of Report: Brian Close

Date: 4 May 2012

Reviewing Officer: David Eaglesham

Date: 4 May 2012

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning & Regulatory Services

Page 76
CONDITIONS AND REASONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. 12/00663/PP
1.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details specified on the
application form dated 21 March 2012 and the approved drawing reference numbers:
1:10,000 Location Plan, 1:500 Block Plan, 0130-AD-00174 D, unless the prior written
approval of the Planning Authority is obtained for an amendment to the approved details
under Section 64 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.
Reason: For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

2.

For the avoidance of any doubt, the monopole and turbine blades shall be painted in
RAL 7000 Dark Squirrel Grey, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning
Authority.
Reason: In terms of visual impact and to integrate the wind turbine in its surroundings. .

3. This permission shall be for a period of 20 years from the date of this permission.
Within 6 months of the end of that period, or following the earlier cessation of use of the
wind turbine for a continuous period in excess of 12 month, whichever is the earlier, the
wind turbine and ancillary equipment shall be dismantled and removed from the site and
the land reinstated in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the
Planning Authority, unless a further planning application for the retention of the turbine is
has been approved by the Planning Authority.
Reason: In order that the Planning Authority has the opportunity to review the
circumstances pertaining to the consent, which is considered to be of a temporary
nature and in the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

ADVISORY NOTES TO APPLICANT
•

This planning permission will last only for three years from the date of this decision
notice, unless the development has been started within that period. [See section
58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).]

•

In order to comply with Section 27A(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland)
Act 1997, prior to works commencing on site it is the responsibility of the developer to
complete and submit the attached ‘Notice of Initiation of Development’ to the
Planning Authority specifying the date on which the development will start.

•

In order to comply with Section 27B(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland)
Act 1997 it is the responsibility of the developer to submit the attached ‘Notice of
Completion’ to the Planning Authority specifying the date upon which the
development was completed.

•

The applicants are advised by NATS NERL Safeguarding that while there is no
safeguarding objection to the proposed development, please be aware that this
response applies specifically to the response dated 5 April 2012 ref. W(F)14021 and
only reflects the position of NERL (that is responsible for the management of en route
air traffic) based on the information supplied at the time of this application. The
response does not provide any indication of the position of any other party, whether
they be an airport, airspace user or otherwise.

Page 77
If any changes are proposed to the information supplied to NERL regarding this
application which become the basis of a revised, amended or further application for
approval, then as a statutory consultee NERL requires that it be further consulted on
any such changes prior to any planning permission or any consent being granted.
The applicants are advised to contact NATS NERL Safeguarding – Mailbox25,
NATS-CTC, 4000 Parkway, Solent, Business Park, Whiteley, Hampshire, PO15 7FL.
T: 01489 444687, F: 01489 444013 or E: nerlsafeguarding@nats.co.uk.

Page 78
APPENDIX A – RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER: 12/00663/PP
PLANNING LAND USE AND POLICY ASSESSMENT
A. Settlement Strategy
Toward Sailing Club lies outwith the ‘settlement’ boundary of Toward within an area
zoned Sensitive Countryside in the Argyll and Bute Local Plan (August 2009). In the
Argyll and Bute Structure Plan policy STRAT DC5, encouragement is given to small
scale infill, rounding-off, redevelopment and change of use. The site for the wind turbine
is located close to Toward Sailing Clubhouse and within the curtilage of the Club’s larger
site.
Accordingly, in terms of the settlement strategy, the proposal would be consistent with
policies STRAT DC5 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’, and policies LP ENV1, LP
ENV 19 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’.
B. Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development
i) Location
The application site is on a landscaped area within Toward Sailing Club’s site. The
Club’s site comprises a Clubhouse with secure dinghy park, car parking area and
separate Boat Store on the northern side of a bus turning area. The Sailing Club site is
leased from Argyll and Bute Council.
The site for the wind turbine is on a grassed area between the Clubhouse and Toward
Quay, a Grade B-listed structure. To the east of the Clubhouse across the A815 is
Castle Toward Gate Lodge, a Category B-listed building that lies within the Garden and
Designed Landscape of Castle Toward.
The nearest residential properties are the Gate Lodge at 80 metres and The Old Smithy
at 160 metres to the east.
ii) Nature and Design of Proposed Development
This application is for the erection of a 5kw triple bladed Evance R9000 wind turbine
with a 2.75m blade radius located on top of a 12.3 metre high monopole (15.05 metres
to blade tip). The monopole would be constructed from galvanised steel and coloured
RAL7000 Dark Squirrel Grey instead of the standard white. The blades would have a
nominal speed of 200 rpm with a direct drive system and no gearbox to reduce noise.
The turbine would be sited on a concrete pad with underground cabling to connect to an
electricity meter within the clubhouse.
C.

Wind Farm Policy
Policy REN2 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ supports on-site commercial and
domestic wind turbines where the development is located as close to the premises
which it is intended to serve as is safely and technically possible, servicing and access
implications are acceptable and subject to addressing other material considerations.
The proposed development must not have an unacceptable adverse impact directly,
indirectly or cumulatively with areas of nature conservation, ecology and the water
environment, highly valued landscapes, sites of historic or archaeological interest and
their settings, settlement character, visual, residential and general amenity,
telecommunications, transmitting or receiving equipment. Additionally, on site

Page 79
commercial and domestic wind turbines should not exceed the energy requirements of
the premises by more than 25%.
In this case, the agent has confirmed that the Club's current annual usage/consumption
is approximately 2100kWh whilst the expected generation from the proposed turbine is
6600 kWh (at a mean wind speed of 4.5m/s or 10.1mph) and expected to export
4500kWh to the grid. Accordingly, what is expected to be generated from the proposed
turbine is considerably more than 125% of the predicted consumption figure and
therefore this application should not be treated as an on-site commercial development
but be assessed under Policy LP REN 1.
Policy LP REN 1 ‘Wind Farms and Wind Turbines’ generally applies to larger wind farm
developments but offers support in forms, scales and sites where the technology can
operate efficiently, where servicing and access implications are acceptable and where
the proposed development will not have an unacceptable adverse impact, directly,
indirectly or cumulatively on the economic, social or physical aspects of sustainable
development.
Additionally, the Council has recently approved the ‘Argyll and Bute Landscape Wind
Capacity Study’ (January 2012). The study indicates that within the Character Type 13
‘Rolling Farmland with Estates’, there is increased scope to assimilate micro-small wind
turbines (12-20m high) providing these are sited so they are visually associated with
existing buildings. Wherever possible, a turbine of less than 20m high will ‘fit’ into the
landscape more successfully if it forms part of a ‘cluster’ of development and is visually
associated with other built structures in the landscape. This is best achieved if the size
of the turbine is in proportion to the size of individual features, such as buildings, trees
and even pylons and other structures.
Whilst larger wind turbines could be visually prominent within this landscape character
type, there is scope for carefully sited smaller turbines and the proposed wind turbine is
considered to be consistent with the methodology and guidance for such a scale of
turbine.
In terms of cumulative impact, although other larger wind farm developments can be
viewed from the Toward area (i.e. Ardrossan, Kelburn and Dalry schemes) these are
located at distances over 20km where the a wind turbine of the scale proposed would
have no significant cumulative impact.
The nearest wind turbine at Killellan Farm however is located some 1.7 km to the north
of the sailing club. This single 11kw wind turbine mounted on 18 metre high lattice
tower, two blades, 25 metres to blade tip height is visible from the Sailing Club site, but
some distance away with an effective backdrop and the use of lightweight lattice tower.
The proposed wind turbine has been chosen for its scale and efficiency when sited
close to the Clubhouse building. The particular siting amongst the Clubhouse with
flagpole and other mast structures in the dinghy park together with surrounding trees
and other buildings will all help to integrate the proposed development within the
surrounding landscape. When viewed from a distance, the wind turbine would be similar
in scale to a large flagpole or telegraph pole and would not look out of place amongst
the existing buildings and structures within the Sailing Club site.
Accordingly, in terms of the settlement strategy, the proposal would be consistent with
policy STRAT RE1 of the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan, and policy LP REN1 of the
Argyll and Bute Local Plan.

Page 80
D.

Natural Environment
There are no known nature conservation or habitat interests in the vicinity.

E. Built Environment – Listed Buildings, Designed Landscape
The wind turbine would be sited 80 metres to the west of Category B-listed Castle
Toward Gate Lodge, that lies within the Garden and Designed Landscape of Castle
Toward and 160 metres west of the Old Smithy. The Sailing Club Clubhouse is located
in front of the Gate Lodge which would provide partial screening of the 12 metre high
monopole. The maximum height of the clubhouse is some 8 metres whilst the Gate
Lodge is approximately 10 metres high. The scale, position and colour of the wind
turbine are therefore unlikely to have an adverse impact on these listed buildings and
structures beyond the existing position.
Historic Scotland has no objection in respect of potential adverse impact on the setting
of the Castle Toward designed landscape or Toward Castle due to the small scale of
the turbine proposed.
Accordingly, in terms of the settlement strategy, the proposal would be consistent with
policies STRAT DC5 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’, and policies LP ENV1, LP
ENV 19 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’.
F.

Landscape Character
In the surrounding landscape, the grey coloured tower with thin triple blade rotor will
have a similar appearance to a flagpole or telecommunication mast and have limited
visual impact to surrounding residential properties and from the C10 road. Long range
views from Bute will be minimal due to background screening from mature trees and
topography and foreground screening by the clubhouse building and other structures.
It is considered that the proposal is consistent with the provisions of Policy LP ENV 19
and Appendix A of the ‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ together with the Council’s Design
Guide.

G. Noise
The site has been appropriately specified, designed and located to allow sufficient
distance between the micro wind generator and any existing noise-sensitive
development so that noise from the turbine will not be a nuisance. The proposed
Evance R9000 5kW wind turbine has been designed to be very quiet and with low
rotor tip speed and direct drive system without a gearbox will all ensure that the turbine
operates as quietly as possible. It is considered that the proposed siting would be
capable of reducing any potential noise impact to the nearest noise sensitive property
at Gate Lodge by screening from three mature trees and background noise. An
acoustic data summary has been submitted based on ETSU-R-97 ‘Assessment and
Rating of Noise From Wind Farms’.
Public Protection consider that in view of the proposed design data supplied by the
manufacturer, turbine noise should not be a significant problem. The only premises
lying within a 77m radius of the turbine and within an area where the noise level can
be expected to be >40 dB(A) is the applicants’ own premises. This would also be
mitigated by wind noise at the site which is in an unsheltered coastal location. Based
on this Public Protection has no objection provided the turbine operates in accordance
with the submitted data.

Page 81
Accordingly, in terms of potential noise impact, the proposal has been considered as
consistent with policy LP BAD 1 of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan.
H. Shadow Flicker
Public Protection comment that shadow flicker can cause problems when wind
turbines are sited within ten rotor diameters of a sensitive property. The proposed
siting of the wind turbine in this instance is slightly less than 10 rotor lengths from the
applicants’ premises. Public Protection consider that this will not be a significant
problem as the premises are closed over the winter months when the sun is at its
lowest and shadow flicker is maximal, and that the zone of possible shadow flicker
problems will be only a small section of the building which, due to its location, is
equipped with blackout blinds to mitigate excessive sunlight.
Accordingly, given the internal layout of the Gate Lodge and position relative to the
proposed wind turbine and intervening nature trees, it is considered that the effect of
shadow flicker will be minimal.
Accordingly, in terms of potential noise impact, the proposal has been considered as
consistent with policy LP BAD 1 of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan.
I.

Infrastructure, Telecommunication and Aviation Interests
NATS NERL Safeguarding confirm that the proposal does not conflict with their
safeguarding criteria but recommends an advisory note to cover any alterations to the
siting or design of the turbine. No other aviation or telecommunication concerns have
been raised.
Accordingly, in terms of the settlement strategy, the proposal would be consistent with
policies STRAT DC5 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’, and policies LP ENV1, LP
ENV 19 of the ‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’.

J.

Other Key Policy Matters - Climate change considerations
In assessing any application associated with the generation of renewable energy it is
necessary to have regard to macro environmental consequences as a material
consideration. Government and Development Plan policy supports renewable
electricity generation in principle, in the interests of addressing climate change,
provided that development does not impinge to an unacceptable degree upon its
surroundings. As part of the decision making process, it is necessary to consider
whether the advantages associated with the production of electricity from renewable
sources, consequent CO2 savings and the contribution which a development might
make to the tackling of global warming. In this case, the turbine size at 5kW is limited,
and therefore the contribution which the development will make to climate change will
inevitably be small.

K. Conclusion
The proposed wind turbine and associated works would have a limited visual impact in
the surrounding landscape and be consistent with policies LP ENV 10, ENV 19, BAD 1
and REN 1 of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan (2009). Public Protection has no
objections in respect of potential noise impact or shadow flicker. As the proposed
development is considered to be temporary in nature, a condition restricts the use of
the turbine to twenty years. There are no reasonable grounds to recommend refusal.

Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 83

211000

Pipe Line

3.5m

Pipe Lin

e

Hi g
hW
ate
r Sp
ring

1:250,000

Mea
n

Toward Quay

Shin
g

le

Shingle
s

MLWS

Shingle

Hall

MP

Application Site
Toward
Sailing Club

The Gatehouse
Lodge

Rock

Slipway

Rock
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright 2009. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or Civil Proceedings. OS License No.100023368, 2009.
211000

Location Plan relative to
Application Ref: 12/00663/PP
Date: 11.05.12

Scale: 1:1,250

°

Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 85

Agenda Item 10

Argyll and Bute Council
Development and Infrastructure Services
Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as required
by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning
Permission in Principle
____________________________________________________________________________
Reference No:

12/00818/PP

Planning Hierarchy:

Local Application

Applicant:

Mr and Mrs John Smith

Proposal:

Erection of a single dwellinghouse, installation of private sewage
treatment facility and formation of new access

Site Address:
Land north west of Finnart Farmhouse, Feuins Road, Portincaple
____________________________________________________________________________
DECISION ROUTE
(i)
Local Government Scotland Act 1973
____________________________________________________________________________
(A)

THE APPLICATION
(i)

Development Requiring Express Planning Permission
Erection of dwellinghouse;
Installation of sewage treatment plant;
Formation of access.

(ii)

Other specified operations

Connection to public water supply.
____________________________________________________________________________
(B)

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be approved as a minor departure to
development plan policy subject to conditions and a PAN 41 Hearing.
____________________________________________________________________________
(C)

HISTORY:

11/01591/PP - Erection of dwelling house, installation of private sewage treatment facility
and formation of new access. Application withdrawn.
____________________________________________________________________________

(D)

CONSULTATIONS:

Page 86
Development Policy (dated 30/4/12):
surrounding the site.

Provides clarification on the policy issues

SEPA (dated 2/5/12): An issue in relation to potential flooding resulting from surface
water run-off at the site is a matter for the Planning Authority in conjunction with their
Building Control colleagues with assistance from the Council’s Flood Prevention Team.
Flood Alleviation Officer (dated 1/5/12): No objections subject to conditions.
Roads Helensburgh and Lomond (dated 8/5/12): No objections.
Scottish Water (dated 20/4/12): No objections.
Garelochhead Community Council (dated 9/5/12): Object to the proposal.
Ministry of Defence: No response to date.

____________________________________________________________________________
(E)

PUBLICITY:

ADVERT TYPE: Regulation 20 Advert Local Application
EXPIRY DATE: 11.05.2012
____________________________________________________________________________
(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:
Objections to the proposal have been received from one local Member and 53
letters from individuals as detailed in Appendix 1.
(i)

Summary of issues raised
A

portion

of

the

site

is

located

outwith

the

settlement

boundary.

Comment: See my assessment below.
The existing road is unsuitable for further traffic.
Comment: The Area Roads Engineer has no objections to the proposal on road
safety grounds.
The proposed access would be dangerous
Comment: The access could attain visibility splays which are acceptable to the
Area Roads Engineer, the provision and maintenance of which could be secured
by way of condition.
The design of the house would be out of keeping with any others in the area.
Comment: See my assessment.
The positioning of the house to the west of Feuins Road is not in keeping with the
settlement.

Page 87
Comment: See my assessment.
The proposed house would spoil the view at an important vantage point in an
area of outstanding natural beauty.
Comment: See my assessment with regard to the impact on the Area of
Panoramic Quality.
It is recommended that Councillors visit the site before evaluating the application.
Comment: In the event of a local hearing being held it would be routine to hold a
site familiarisation beforehand.
The proposed house has insufficient space available for visiting vehicles and the
delivery of goods.
Comment: The Area Roads Engineer is satisfied with the proposed parking
arrangements which are in accordance with Policy LP TRAN 6 of the Local Plan.
A number of trees would be affected in the process of construction.
Comment: While the site is largely clear of trees, it would appear that one
Rowan at the front of the site would be require to be removed to form the visibility
splay and a further, smaller self-seeded tree would be removed to make way for
the attenuation tank. This is considered to be acceptable as neither of these
trees is considered worthy of a Tree Preservation Order.
There are wild orchids, newts, buzzards and deer in this area.
Comments: There are no statutory or non statutory nature designations covering
the site.
Has the applicant investigated who owns the intervening land required for the
sewage outfall?
Comment: The outfall is included within the red line of the site and the land
owner has been notified of the application in line with application certification
requirements.
The proposal would cause further drainage problems.
Comment: The Flood Alleviation Officer has no objections to the application
subject to conditions.
The applicant’s supporting statement is not written in clear English and therefore
lacks clarity and transparency.
Comment: The content of the supporting design statement is considered
acceptable.
The proposal would put a further strain on schools and Garelochhead Health
Centre.
Comment: The impact of a single dwelling is considered to be insignificant in
terms of both education and health provision.

Page 88
The proposal would be contrary to a number of the policies contained within the
Local Plan.
Comment: See my assessment.
The proposal would have underbuilding visible at the north east corner and at the
south west corner elevation.
Comment: See my assessment.
The Council have a duty to consult the Community Council and Scottish Natural
Heritage.
Comment: Community Councils are advised of all applications by means of the
weekly list of planning applications with agreement that they will engage in the
process as they see fit. As the site does not have any statutory nature
designations and does not provide any potential habitat for European Protected
Species it was not considered necessary to consult SNH.
Concern that there will be disruption and road safety issues during the
construction phase.
Comment: Disruption during the construction phase is not a material planning
consideration.
The settlement zones identified on the plan in this vicinity are unsuitable for such
a land use and this designation should be reviewed.
Comment: All planning applications are assessed against Development Plan
policies provide the statutory policy framework for decision-making for the life of
the plan. Engagement in the Local Development Plan process is the vehicle to
request a review to these policies and not through the determination of a
planning application.
There are often bats seen in the vicinity of the application site.
Comment: While bats may forage across this area is it not considered that the
site provides potential for bat roosts.
Areas of Panoramic Quality (APQ) should have a Landscape Capacity Study
produced.
Comment: The area forms part of the East Loch Long Area of Panoramic
Quality. Appendix 2A of the adopted Local Plan refers to landscape capacity
studies being carried out within National Scenic Areas and Areas of Panoramic
Quality. These landscape capacity studies have been undertaken in order to
address the concerns raised by the Reporters around the general presumption in
favour of small scale development established by the plan within areas of open
countryside, where these had been designated as Rural Opportunities Areas in
the Local Plan. As there are no Rural Opportunity Areas designated within the
East Loch Long APQ, accordingly no landscape capacity study was required for
this area
Fumes from the wood burning stove will be carried in the direction of Finnart
Farmhouse.
Comment: This is not a material planning issue.

Page 89
The watercourse does not have the capacity to serve any more septic tanks.
Comment: A sewage treatment plant is proposed where the sewage is treated on
site and therefore the outfall would not pollute the burn.
No neighbour notification was received by Finnart Farmhouse.
Comment: The neighbour notification notice to that property was generated on
12.04.2012 at 15:58 by the Council’s application processing system. Neighbour
Notification Notice are then sent by TNT post and delivered by Royal Mail.
We
do not record proof of postage, but can confirm that should any of these notices
not be able to be delivered by Royal Mail they are returned to the Council with
details of why they were not delivered. The resident of Finnart Farmhouse has,
however, confirmed that he is aware of the application and has submitted
objections (email dated 9/5/12).
The orientation of the building is unacceptable with the gable of the house facing
the road.
Comment: The orientation and siting of the dwelling is considered to be
acceptable.
The visibility sightlines cannot be achieved within land owned by the applicant
and a section 75 would be required to ensure that visibility splay was maintained
in perpetuity.
Comment: The visibility splays are contained within the red line of the site. Land
ownership is not a material planning issue providing that all owners are duly
notified through the planning application process. For the control of visibility
splays, a section 75 would only be required of the works were outwith the red line
of the site.
The size of the building in proportion to the size of the site is unduly large.
Comment: The footprint of the building occupies approximately 12% of the
proposed plot. Appendix A of the adopted Local Plan states that detached
houses should occupy a maximum of 33% of the plot. The development is well
within these limits.
The proposal will destroy views towards Loch Long.
Comment: It is not considered that the house will destroy these views. The
house when developed will form a small grouping with Finnart Farmhouse. The
site is largely located within the settlement boundary which presumes in favour of
small scale development and the orientation, siting and design of the house is
considered compatible with the landscape.
____________________________________________________________________________
(G)

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:
(i)

Environmental Statement: No

(ii)

An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats)
Regulations 1994: No

Page 90
(iii)

A design or design/access statement: Yes
The applicant has submitted a design statement dated 18/8/11. In this the
applicant advises that he believes that the design respects the historic vernacular
of rural Argyll and careful consideration has been given to the landscape setting.
It has been designed taking account to the Council’s Sustainable Design Guide
and Development Plan Policy. The plan form is that of a single room depth as
advocated by the design guide and most of the windows are to the south and
west with smaller windows north and east thus maximising solar gain. The plan
form will allow for life usage and capable of adaption to meet reasonable
expectations for special needs users.

(iv)

A report on the impact of the proposed development eg. Retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: Yes. A
drainage assessment has been submitted in support of the application.

____________________________________________________________________________
(H)

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
Is a Section 75 agreement required: No

____________________________________________________________________________
(I)

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31 or
32: No

____________________________________________________________________________

Page 91
(J)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.
‘Argyll and Bute Structure Plan’ 2002
STRAT DC 1 – Development within the Settlements
STRAT DC 2 – Development within the Countryside Around Settlements
STRAT DC 8 – Landscape and Development Control
‘Argyll and Bute Local Plan’ 2009
LP ENV 1 – Impact on the General Environment
LP ENV 2 – Impact on Biodiversity
LP ENV 6 – Impact on Habitats and Species
LP ENV 7 – Impact on Tree/Woodland
LP ENV 10 – Impact on Areas of Panoramic Quality (APQs)
LP ENV 19 – Development Setting, Layout and Design
LP HOU 1 – General Housing Development
LP HOU 3 – Special Needs Access Provision in Housing Developments
LP SERV 1 – Private Sewage Treatment Plants and Wastewater Systems
LP SERV 2 – Incorporation of Natural Features/Sustainable Drainage Systems
LP SERV 3 – Drainage Impact Assessment (DIA)
LP SERV 8 – Flood and Land Erosion – The Risk Framework for Development
LP SERV 9 – Development in the Vicinity of Notifiable Installations
LP TRAN 3 – Special Needs Access Provision
LP TRAN 4 – New and Existing Public Roads and Private Access Regimes
LP TRAN 6 – Vehicle Parking Provision
Appendix A – Sustainable Siting and Design Principles
Appendix C – Access and Parking Standards

(ii)

List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of Circular
4/2009.

Argyll & Bute Sustainable Design Guidance (2006)
____________________________________________________________________________
(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental Impact
Assessment: No

____________________________________________________________________________
(L)

Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): No

____________________________________________________________________________

Page 92
(M)

Has a sustainability check list been submitted: No

____________________________________________________________________________
(N)

Does the Council have an interest in the site: No

____________________________________________________________________________
Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other):
In view of the number of
representations received and the ‘minor departure’ to the provisions of the Development
plan it is considered appropriate to hold a PAN 41 Hearing.
____________________________________________________________________________
(O)

(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a dwelling and the installation of an
associated sewage treatment plant and access. The majority of the house plot site
(approximately 93%) lies within the ‘settlement’ boundary of the minor settlement of
Portincaple / Whistlefield as defined by the adopted Local Plan. Within this area there is
a presumption in favour of small scale residential development subject to other local plan
policies being satisfied. The remaining 7% of the site which is located at the north
western corner of the plot lies within an area defined as ‘countryside around settlement’
(CAS). There is a presumption against residential development in these areas in order
to avoid pressure for development to creep beyond defined settlement boundaries.
However, given the small size of this area, the fact that it is to form part of the garden,
and will not accommodate any built development, and given the opportunity to preclude
ancillary structures such as outbuildings by means of condition, I consider its
incorporation within the proposed curtilage can be justified as a ‘minor departure’ from
Structure Plan Policy STRAT DC 2 and Local Plan Policy LP HOU1.
The site also lies within an area designated as an Area of Panoramic Quality (APQ)
where careful consideration must be given to the impact of proposed development upon
the scenic qualities of its landscape setting. It is considered that the proposal would be
acceptable in this regard given its siting, scale and design.
The Road Network Manager has no objections to the proposal and the Flood Alleviation
Officer is satisfied with the drainage proposals.

____________________________________________________________________________
(Q)

Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan:

No, the proposal represents a minor departure from Policy STRAT DC2 of the Argyll and
Bute Structure Plan and Policy LP HOU 1 of the adopted Argyll and Bute Local Plan.
____________________________________________________________________________

(R)

Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle should
be granted
The majority of the proposal is located within the settlement boundary of Portincaple /
Whistlefield within which there is a presumption in favour of small scale housing
development. The proposed dwelling is of an acceptable scale and design and would

Page 93
not adversely impact upon the scenic qualities of the Area of Panoramic Quality within
which the site is located. Whilst a small part of the site is located within the adjacent
‘countryside around settlement’ zone, this will only form part of the dwelling’s rear garden
which can be retained free of built development by way of condition, and in that context it
is considered to be an acceptable ‘minor departure’ from Development Plan policy.
____________________________________________________________________________
(S)

Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development Plan

The area of the site which lies within the Countryside Around Settlement zone amounts
to approximately 7 per cent of the overall plot size. This small area will form the bottom
part of the garden and will not contain any part of the dwellinghouse and can be retained
free of built development by way of condition. In these circumstances it is considered
that a ‘minor departure’ is acceptable.
____________________________________________________________________________
(T)

Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: Not required

____________________________________________________________________________

Author of Report: Sandra Davies

Date: 23rd May 2012

Reviewing Officer: Howard Young

Date: 23rd May 2012

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning and Regulatory Services

Page 94
CONDITIONS AND REASONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO.12/00818/PP
1.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details specified on the
application form dated 4/4/12 and the approved drawing reference numbers 11.10.05,
11.10.07, 11.010.09, 11.010.10A, 11.010.08, 11.010.2B, 11.010.04A, 11.010.3A and
GD01B unless the prior written approval of the planning authority is obtained for other
materials/finishes/for an amendment to the approved details under Section 64 of the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Reason: For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is implemented in
accordance with the approved details.
2.

Prior to the commencement of works the following shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Planning Authority:
i)
ii)
iii)

A Method Statement detailing surface water containment during construction;
Construction details of porous paving, attenuation tank, filtration trench and
hydrobrake;
Written details of maintenance requirements and vesting of SuDS/SWD system.

The dwelling shall not be occupied until the duly approved drainage scheme has been
constructed and is operational.
Reason: In order to ensure that there are acceptable drainage arrangements on the site in
order to prevent flooding.
3.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Classes 3A, 3B, 3C and 3D of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development)(Scotland) Amendment Order 2011 no
development shall be built / installed within the curtilage of the dwelling hereby approved
without planning permission having been granted by the Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to restrict ‘permitted development’ rights otherwise available, having regard to
the encroachment of the approved curtilage of the dwelling beyond the defined limits of the
settlement boundary defined by the approved development plan.
4.

The proposed access shall be formed in accordance with drawing number 11.010.04A.
Prior to work starting on site these visibility splays shall be cleared of all obstructions
over 1.05 metres in height above the level of the adjoining carriageway and thereafter
shall be maintained clear of all obstructions over 1.05 metres in height to the satisfaction
of the Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of road safety.
5.

Development shall not begin until samples of materials to be used (on external surfaces
of the buildings) and/or in construction of hard standings/walls/fences) have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Development shall
thereafter be carried out using the approved materials or such alternatives as may be
agreed in writing, with the Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to integrate the development into its surroundings.

6.

Development shall not begin until details of a hard and soft landscaping scheme has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Details of the
scheme shall include:
i)

existing and finished ground levels in relation to an identified fixed datum;

Page 95
ii) location and design, including materials, of walls, fences and gates;
iii) soft and hard landscaping works, including the location, type and size of each
individual tree and / or shrub;
iv) details of landscaping to soften the impact of underbuilding on the north west
elevation.
Thereafter works shall be carried out in accordance with these details unless otherwise
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. All planting, seeding or turfing as may be
comprised in the approved details shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding
seasons following the commencement of development unless otherwise agreed in
writing with the Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping.

NOTES TO APPLICANT

1.

The length of this planning permission: This planning permission will last only for three
years from the date of this decision notice, unless the development has been started
within that period. [See section 58(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 (as amended).]

2.

In order to comply with Section 27A(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997, prior to works commencing on site it is the responsibility of the developer to
complete and submit the attached ‘Notice of Initiation of Development’ to the Planning
Authority specifying the date on which the development will start.

3.

In order to comply with Section 27B(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 it is the responsibility of the developer to submit the attached ‘Notice of Completion’
to the Planning Authority specifying the date upon which the development was completed.

3.

A Road Opening Permit will be required to form the vehicle cross over.

Page 96
APPENDIX A – RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER: 12/00818/PP
PLANNING LAND USE AND POLICY ASSESSMENT
A.

Settlement Strategy
The site is located mainly within the ‘settlement’ boundary of Portincaple. Portincaple /
Whistlefield is defined as a ‘minor settlement’ within Table C of the adopted Argyll and
Bute Local Plan. Policy STRAT DC1 of the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan gives support
to ‘small scale’ development which is compatible with an essentially rural settlement
location on appropriate infill, rounding off and redevelopment sites.
A small part of the north western corner of the site is located within land defined as
‘countryside around settlement’ (CAS). Policy STRAT DC2 presumes against
development where it would result in the extension of an established settlement
boundary. It is calculated that this area amounts to approximately 7 per cent of the site
within which no built development would take place and ‘permitted development’ rights
for outbuildings and so on could be removed by way of condition. On this basis and as
this would comprise and remain an undeveloped part of the garden, it is considered that
this would constitute an acceptable ‘minor departure’.
Policy LP HOU 1 is supportive of small scale development in minor settlements.

B.

Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development
The application site is located on the west side of Feuins Road across the road from
Finnart Farmhouse. The proposal is for a three bedroom house which would have
accommodation over two levels. The upper floor would have the accommodation within
the roof space and would have roof lights wrapping around from under the eaves to the
roof slope. The house would have a mix of wet dash render and stained timber clad
walls with a natural slate roof. Ground floor windows would be timber framed and
double glazed with the roof lights having grey frames above.
The house would have a simple narrow plan which would be sympathetic to traditional
proportions, with more contemporary window openings and detailing. The gable of the
house would face onto Feuins Road with the front elevation being orientated to the south
west.
As this is a sloping site there would necessarily be a level of underbuilding to the rear of
the site. At the greatest point this would measure approximately 2.3 metres, however in
this case, I am of the view that this would not be visually discordant because of the
narrow gable and deeper corner lounge window. Both the principal and rear elevations
would therefore appear to be balanced. I am therefore of the opinion that Policy LP ENV
19 would be satisfied along with the principles of the Council’s Sustainable Design
Guide.
Taking account of the above, I am of the view that although there would be a degree of
underbuilding, this would satisfy the aims of Appendix A as the design of the building
overall would not be unsightly or detrimental to amenity.
In terms of Policy LP HOU3, the applicant has taken account of the need for special
needs access and has advised that the house could be easily adaptable as a lifetime
house.

Page 97
C.

Natural Environment
A number of the letters of objection have raised concerns about the impact of the
development upon plants and wildlife including European protected species, namely
bats. The site is not subject to any statutory or non-statutory nature designations and
the site dies not have any attribute, by way of buildings or trees, which would provide a
suitable habitat for roosting bats. It is not therefore considered that the proposal would
conflict with policies LP ENV 2, and LP ENV 6.

D.

Landscape Character
The application site slopes downwards from east to west and is currently an open
unmanaged area which is covered in bracken. There is group of trees to the north of the
site which would appear to be the result of natural regeneration. The south of the site is
generally more open; however, there are a few scattered trees. The application site is
open and it is the proposal would not impact on any significant trees.
Structure Plan Policy STRAT DC 8 presumes against development which by reason of
location, siting, scale, form, design or cumulative impact damages or undermines the key
environmental features of a visually contained or wider landscape or coastscape. Under
this policy areas of panoramic quality are noted as important and vulnerable landscapes
in Argyll and Bute. In a similar vein, Local Plan Policy LP ENV 10 notes that
development in or adjacent to Areas of Panoramic Quality (APQ’s) will be resisted where
its scale, location or design will have a significant adverse impact on the character of the
landscape.
The SNH 1996 ‘Landscape Assessment of Argyll and the Firth of Clyde’ reveals that the
site is close to the boundary between two landscape types, namely Open Ridgeland and
Steep Ridgeland and Mountains. The site has more of an Open Moorland character with
a backdrop of steeper ground behind and to the north. In terms of sensitivity to change
the study notes that:
“reflection increases the visual impact of built development on this shoreline landscape.
Elevated areas are larger in scale and more open, with long framed views. They are
therefore particularly sensitive to change”
The ‘settlement’ boundary area within which the application site is located was
introduced and accepted at the time of the preparation, consultation and subsequent
adoption of the current Local Plan. The impact of development on the APQ was
considered at that time and the extent of the settlement boundary defined by the plan
was found to be acceptable in the context of the APQ designation. Accordingly, whilst
the ‘settlement’ status confers a presumption in favour of the principle of the
development proposed, the detail of the proposal requires to be considered as part of
the assessment of this application, including its consequences for the APQ designation.
The current proposal is not considered to have a significant detrimental impact upon its
surroundings for the reasons that it would be of a sympathetic scale and would sit below
the height of Finnart Farmhouse across the road, with the elevation supported by
underbuild facing away from public views. It would also have a visual association with
the nearby farmhouse. The palette of materials would complement and blend in with the
property across the road and there is already development to the north of the site which
is accessed from the A814. The scale and proportions of the building are not
inappropriate to its setting and its presence would not undermine the scenic qualities of
the APQ within which it would be located. I am therefore of the view that the proposal
would not be contrary to policies STRAT DC8 and LP ENV 10.

Page 98
E.

Road Network, Parking and Associated Transport Matters.
The proposal would involve the formation of a vehicular access onto Feuins Road. The
plans show that the new driveway would have an acceptable gradient and visibility splay
and would thus comply with the terms of Policy LP TRAN 4. On site vehicle parking
would be provide in accordance with Policy LP TRAN 6. The site edged red includes the
land required for the formation of the visibility sightline and the applicant has submitted a
letter for the owner of this land confirming that he will give legal access for the
maintenance of the visibility in perpetuity. In these circumstances and given the visibility
splays are contained within the site edged red, it is considered that an appropriately
worded condition will suffice and a section 75 agreement would not be required to
secure this aim.

F.

Infrastructure
Scottish Water has confirmed that there are no public sewers in the area and under
these circumstances the proposed private drainage arrangements would accord with
Policy LP SERV 1.
Issues relating to surface water runoff and the capacity of the ground to accept filtration
have been raised. Due to concerns about drainage in this locality, a Drainage
Assessment has been submitted in support of the application. The drainage of the site
has been designed as a separate system, with the foul discharging into a BioDisc
Treatment Plant. The outfall from this unit will be discharged into the burn adjacent to
the house plot site as the soils from the site are not suitable for a soakaway.
The surface water run-off from roofs will be discharged into filter drains to provide a level
of treatment and the run-off from the driveway will receive treatment via a gravel parking
area which will be formed as a tanked system discharging into an attenuation tank. After
attenuation, the surface water will discharge into the adjacent burn. The Drainage
Assessment notes that after the development is in place, the rate of discharge to the
burn for the 1:30 year and 1:200 year event will be less than or equal to the predeveloped situation. The Flood Alleviation Officer has reviewed this assessment and
has confirmed that he has no objections subject to conditions. Taking account of the
above, it is considered that the proposal would accord with Policies LP SERV 2, LP
SERV 3 and LP SERV 8.

Page 99
APPENDIX C – REPRESENTATIONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER: 12/00818/PP

Mr Neil Ramsay

Miss Aimee Firkins

Mr Thomas Fletcher

Mr R D Watson

Mr C P Watson

Councillor George Freeman

Scott Munro

MS DEBBIE CARR

Debbie Carr

Ron Fletcher

Mr Ron Fletcher

Ron Fletcher

Ron Fletcher

Ron Fletcher

Ron Fletcher

1/1, 166 Burnfield Road
Glasgow
G43 1EB
108 Manners Road
Portsmouth
PO4 0BG
3 Queens Road
Colmworth
Bedford
MK44 2LA
4 Ashquith Avenue
Morley
Leeds
LS27 9PZ
4 Ashquith Avenue
Morley
Leeds
LS27 9PZ
8 Upland Wynd
Garelochhead
Helensburgh
G84 0BL
Aspen
Feuins Road
Portencaple
G84 0EU
BRAESIDE COTTAGE
PORTINCAPLE
HELENSBURGH
G84 0ET
Braeside Cottage
Portincaple
Nr. Helensburgh
G84 0ET
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
ARgyll And Bute
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
ARgyll And Bute
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
ARgyll And Bute
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
ARgyll And Bute
G84 0EU

10/05/2012

O

03/05/2012

O

11/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

25/04/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

12/04/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

27/04/2012

O

13/04/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

Page 100
Ron Fletcher

Mr R Fletcher

Ron Fletcher

Ron Fletcher

Ron Fletcher

Mr Peter Wilson

mrs angela angus

Mr Neil Smith

Mrs Chris Smith

Mr N Smith

Mrs C Smith

Ruth Chapman

Duncan Macpherson

Mr Grant Ross

Ms Jean McFarlane

Grant Ross

Brian Mackay

Barry Lang

Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
ARgyll And Bute
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Bridgend
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Carrick view
Portincaple
G84 0ET
cedar cottage
portincaple
helensburgh
g84 0et
Dalriada
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Dalriada
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G840EU
Dalriada
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Dalriada
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Ferry House
Portincaple
Helensburgh
G84 0ET
Ferry House
Portincaple
Helensburgh
G84 0RT
Finnart Farmhouse
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0ER
Finnart Farmhouse
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0ER
Finnart Farmhouse
Portincaple
Fion 2 Rhu Station
Station Road
Rhu
G84 8LW
Glenview
Feuins Road

10/05/2012

O

03/05/2012

O

30/04/2012

O

04/05/2012

O

04/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

05/05/2012

O

05/05/2012

O

05/05/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

02/05/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

08/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

14/05/2012

O

Page 101
John And Rosalind Scott

James And Heather Cochran

Mrs Heather Lulham

Ian And Heulwen Hall

Mrs Anne Wood

Mrs Helen Antonelli
S Helen Cameron

Mrs Laraine Rae
Jerry Bernua

Lesley Forrest

Mr. Colin Smith

Mrs Irene Smith

Mrs J S Irving

Ms Polly Dunlop

Mr Robert Brunswick

Stephanie Carmichael

Mr Alan Pinder

Mrs Alison Pinder

Mr Jon More

Portincaple
Inveralit
Portincaple
Nr Helensburgh
G84 0EU
Kiloran
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Longview Feuins Road
Portincaple
Helensburgh
Argyll And Bute
G84 0EU
Lower Feolin Villa
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Midgee Hollow
Portincaple
Near Garelochhead
G84 0EU
No Address Given
Oak Lodge
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0EU
Pete@wacher.eclipse.co.uk
Road End Cottage
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84
Road End Cottage
Portincaple
Nr Helensburgh
G84 0EU
Socair
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0ET
Socair
Portincaple
Garelochhead
G84 0ET
The Bungalow
Portincaple
Garelochhead
Helensburgh
G84 0ET
The Croft
Portincaple
G84 0ET
The Sheiling
Portincaple
Helensburgh
G840EU
Tigh Na Clachan
Portincaple
Nr Helensburgh
G84 0ET
Tigh na Mara
Portincaple
G84 0ET
Tigh na Mara
Portincaple
G84 0ET
WO +SNCO Mess
RAF Waddington
Lincoln

10/05/2012

O

08/05/2012

O

04/05/2012

O

08/05/2012

O

11/05/2012

O

09/05/2012
10/05/2012

O
O

04/05/2012
08/05/2012

O
O

08/05/2012

O

08/05/2012

O

05/05/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

09/05/2012

O

10/05/2012

O

14/05/2012

O

08/05/2012

O

08/05/2012

O

02/05/2012

O

Page 102
LN5 9NB
Professor Vic Lally Dr Maddy
Sclater

A G Naylor

Woodburn
Porticaple
Helensburgh
G84 0ET
Woodstoch
Portincaple

10/05/2012

O

04/05/2012

O

Page 103

223600

Bo u ld ers

Tr

Trac

k

ac

k

Struan

A 81

4

Sonochan

Aspen

Binnein nam Boc

Shi ngl e
Oak Lodge
Issu es
78.6 m
MP

Feol in

Collects

Tigh C arm en De
Issu es

ipw

ay
le

Sl

Shi

ng

The
Paddoc k

d

e

ld

Rivendell

Spr ead s

ers
an

Gr oyn

Loc hha v

Bou

Woo dr uff

S

a

d

d

l

e

e n

Issu es

V
ie

w

Tra
ck

The
Nest

Gr oyn
Sl ip
w ay

e

Shee pf old

FB
Pat
h
(u

Creaggan

m)

Issu es

Bou

ld

ers
an

d

Shi ngl

Shi

Loch Lo ng

e

ng

le

Inver al lt

FB

Pat h (u m )

Lochsi de

Br idg e
End

Woo dst ock

ng le

Wat
er S
pr in
gs
Bou
ld er
san
d Shi

Road
End
Cot a
tg e
MP . 75

88.4 m

Gl envie w

Mea
n Hi
gh

Mea
n Low

Wa ter Sp
ir ng s

Kil or an

Teigen
Str uan

Tr ack

Aspen

Und er pass

Sonoch an
Col l ect s

Roc
k

Riv endel l

Windycroft

Cr eaggan

Wi ndycr of t
Mi dgee Hol lo w
The Shei li ng

LB
Longvi ew

Dun
Torq uil

Groyn
e

The Sheiling

Finn art
Far m
Cot a
tg e

F EUI NS

Bou ld er san d
Shi ngl e
Kat ir ne

OA

Shi ngl e

R
D

Redw ood
Bou ld er san d Shi ng le
- M
-n a

h
T ig

a
a r

An Dar ach

Shel t er

Sl ipw

MLWS

79.9 m

ay

Fer y
r
House

Woo dbur n
FB

The Shack

Tigh - N a- Cla chan
Pat

)
( m
hu

Pat h

Br aesid e

FB
FB

LB

Finnart
Farm

The Cr of t
Plan etr ee

MP . 5

Portinca ple

Fair w ater

Ro

ck
da

le

Slipway

Var a
r g il l

West er L ea

Tr ack

k

Pon d

Tr ac

Wa e
t r f al l

The Bungalow

Cedar
Cot a
tg e

FB

k
Trac

Bir chb ank

Issu es
FB
Br idg eE nd
Dal ir ada
Wa e
t r f al l

Din gley
Del l

Socai r
2
1

4

Gr een
Ket lt e

Dalreoch Whistlefield

Caorach Dubh
P at

Pond

Pond

92m

h

ers &

Moor land Cottage

Whistlefield

Bo uld

Inn
Finnart
Buildings
Farm
Heatheredge
Premnay
Cottage
Hill View
Hillhead

Dunfion Cottage

rn

Ceann a'Chnuic
Bu

Resr
(covered)
Mc
Au

la y

M ea

n Lo
wW
at

er Sp
r ings

R oc

k

Dun
Torquil

9
2b

A8 1

Rai lw ayC ot a
t ge

B 8 72

FEU INS ROA D

Camden
Wayside House

1:24,000

Application Site

An Darach

Shelter

79.9m
Ferry
House

Finnart
Farm
MP .5

Trac
k

Issues
FB
Bridge End
Dalriada

Waterfall

Dingley
Dell

29b

1

A 814

2

Railway Cottage

Green
Kettle

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright 2009. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
may lead to prosecution or Civil Proceedings. OS License No.100023368, 2009.

Dalreoch Whist
223600

Location Plan relative to
Application Ref: 12/00818/PP
Date: 16.05.2012

Scale: 1:2,500

°

Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 105

Agenda Item 11

Argyll and Bute Council
Development and Infrastructure Services
Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as
required by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning
Permission or Planning Permission in Principle
_________________________________________________________________________
Reference No:

12/00838/PP

Planning Hierarchy:

Local application.

Applicant:

Northern Energy Developments Limited

Proposal:

Development of land without compliance with Condition 1 of
Planning Permission reference 08/00309/DET - Erection of a
wood fired combined heat and power plant and formation of
vehicular access.

Site Address:
Land to north of Dalinlongart Waste Disposal Site, Sandbank
_________________________________________________________________________
DECISION ROUTE
(i)
Local Government Scotland Act 1973
_________________________________________________________________________
(A)

THE APPLICATION
(i)
•

Development Requiring Express Planning Permission
Erection of a wood fired combined heat and power plant and formation of
vehicular access (permission to extend original permission by 3 years to 9 June
2016).

(ii)
Other specified operations.
• None.
_________________________________________________________________________
(B)

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions,
reasons and advisory notes set out below.
_________________________________________________________________________
(C)

HISTORY:

Planning permission (ref. 08/00309/DET) for the erection of a wood fired combined
heat and power plant and formation of vehicular access was granted on 9 June 2008.
_________________________________________________________________________
(D)

CONSULTATIONS:

None.
_________________________________________________________________________

Page 106

(E)

PUBLICITY:
Regulation 20(1) Advert (publication date 4 May 2012, expiry 25 May 2012).

(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:
No letters of representation have been received.

(G)

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:
(i)
(ii)

Environmental Statement: N
An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats)
Regulations 1994: N
(iii)
A design or design/access statement: N
(iv)
A report on the impact of the proposed development e.g. Retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: Y
_________________________________________________________________________
(H)

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

(i)
Is a Section 75 agreement required: N
_________________________________________________________________________
(I)

Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31
or 32: N
_________________________________________________________________________
(J)

Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i)

List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in
assessment of the application.

Argyll and Bute Structure Plan 2002
STRAT SI1 Sustainable Development;
STRAT DC5 Development in Sensitive Countryside;
STRAT DC8 Landscape and Development Control;
STRAT RE2 Other Forms of (Non-Wind Energy) Renewable Energy Related
Development.
Argyll and Bute Local Plan (August 2009)
LP ENV 1 Development Impact Setting, Layout and Design including Appendix A
Sustainable Siting and Design Principles;
LP ENV 10 Development Impact on Areas of Panoramic Quality;
LP ENV 19 Development Setting, Layout and Design including Appendix A
Sustainable Siting and Design Principles;
LP BAD 1 Bad Neighbour Development;
LP REN3 Other (Non-Wind) Forms of Renewable Energy Related Development

Page 107

(ii) List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of Circular 4/2009.
SPP, Scottish Planning Policy, 2010
Annex to Planning Advice Note 45: Renewable Energy Technologies
_________________________________________________________________________
(K)

Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental
Impact Assessment: N
_________________________________________________________________________
(L)

Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): N
_________________________________________________________________________
(M)
Has a sustainability check list been submitted: N
_________________________________________________________________________
(N)

Does the Council have an interest in the site: Y Argyll and Bute Council own the
Dalinlongart Waste Management site.
_________________________________________________________________________
(O)
Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): N
_________________________________________________________________________
(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations
Planning permission (ref. 08/00309/DET) was previously granted on 9 June 2008 for
a wood fired combined heat and power plant within the Council’s Waste Management
Facility at Dalinlongart. This permission is due to expire on 9 June 2013. The
applicant’s agent has confirmed that due to unforeseen delays in the procurement
process and the offer of a grid connection date beyond 9 June 2013, a revised
construction schedule has been adopted for the project. As a result, it may not be
possible to implement this consent within the prescribed period and as a
precautionary measure, the applicants request an extension to the approved
permission by which development must commence by three years to 9 June 2016.

The scheme is unchanged from the previous approval and the only physical change
has been some tree felling on the western side of the approach road to the Waste
Management Facility to the south of the development site. In respect of policy
assessment, the Argyll and Bute Local Plan together with the Argyll and Bute
Structure Plan forms the Development Plan (the Cowal Local was still in force at the
time of the last approval). The original report is replicated and updated below for
consistency with a new advisory note for commencement of development.
The proposal is still considered to be acceptable in terms of use, siting, design and
materials subject to the conditions below but requires to be determined by Committee
due to Council ownership of the site.
_________________________________________________________________________
(Q)
Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: Y
_________________________________________________________________________
(R)

Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle
should be granted

Page 108

Planning permission has already been granted for the proposed development and
this application is to extend the life of the permission by a further three years and
covered by an advisory note.
The scheme is unaltered from the originally approved scheme. The proposed
biomass plant and associated works would have a limited visual impact in the
surrounding landscape and consistent with policies STRAT SI1, STRAT DC5, STRAT
DC8, and STRAT RE2 of the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan; and to policies LP
ENV1, LP ENV 10, LP ENV 19, LP BAD 1 and LP REN 2 of the Argyll and Bute Local
Plan (2009). The proposed development would accord with the policies above and
there are no material considerations which would justify refusal of permission.
_________________________________________________________________________
(S)
Reasoned justification for a departure from the provisions of the Development
Plan.
n/a
_________________________________________________________________________
(T)
Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: N
_________________________________________________________________________
Author of Report: Brian Close

Date: 23 May 2012

Reviewing Officer: David Eaglesham

Date: May 2012

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning & Regulatory Services

Page 109

CONDITIONS AND REASONS RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. 12/00838/PP
1.

For the avoidance of doubt, the development shall be implemented in accordance with
the details specified on the application form dated 16 April 2012 and accompanying site
location plan no. MG372/PA/F/01; and to the following drawings approved under
planning permission ref. 08/00309/DET – HG347/PA/F/01, HG347/PA/F/02,
HG347/PA/F/09, HG336/PA/F/04, HG347/PA/F/06, HG347/PA/F/05, unless the prior
written approval of the Planning Authority is obtained for an amendment to the approved
details under Section 64 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.
Reason: For the purpose of clarity, to ensure that the development is implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

2. No development shall be commenced until a Construction Method Statement (CMS) has
been submitted to and has been approved in writing by the Planning Authority following
consultation with the Scottish Environment Protection Agency. The development shall be
implemented in accordance with the provisions of the duly approved CMS.
Reason: In order to ensure that construction activities have regard to pollution control
and amenity considerations.
3. No development shall be commenced until a detailed Sustainable Urban Drainage
(SuDS) Scheme (designed in accordance with the agreed Draft Drainage
Assessment/SuDS Strategy) has been submitted to and has been approved in writing
by the Planning Authority following consultation with the Scottish Environment
Protection Agency and Scottish Water. This shall have regard to the provisions of the
outline drainage assessment submitted with the application and shall seek to minimise
surface water run-off from the site. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with the provisions of the duly approved scheme.
Reason: In order to prevent potential pollution of controlled waters.
4. No development shall be commenced until a Site Waste Management Plan has been
submitted to and has been approved in writing by the Planning Authority following
consultation with the Scottish Environment Protection Agency. This shall address the
intended means of dealing with waste arising during the construction process and during
the operational phase of the development. The development shall be implemented and
operated in accordance with the provisions of the duly approved management plan.
Reason: In the interests of waste minimisation and pollution control.
5. Prior to the commencement of development, samples and/or full details of the
materials/colour finishes to be applied to the boiler/turbine building, the cooling plant,
chimney, wood chip handling equipment and portable buildings shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. These shall comprise recessive
colours appropriate to a forested location (e.g. a non-reflective material, dark green in
colour). The development shall be completed in accordance with the duly approved
details and shall be retained as such unless any subsequent variation thereof is agreed
in advance in writing by the Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to help assimilate the development into its landscape setting in the
interests of visual amenity.
6. All emissions from the combined heat and power plant shall discharge from a chimney
which shall not exceed an overall height of 30.0 metres.

Page 110

Reason: In order to ensure that chimney height is limited to that necessary to safeguard
air quality, in the interests of visual amenity.
7. Prior to the commencement of development, a dispersion modelling exercise shall be
submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority to ensure that the air quality of the
residential properties at Ballochyle and Sandhaven will not exceed stated objectives by
the grounding of the plume from the 30-metre high stack.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and the protection of local air quality.
8. Prior to the commencement of development, a chimney height assessment using
Technical Guidance Note D1 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Planning Authority, if the boiler is not to require authorisation as a prescribed process by
SEPA.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and the protection of local air quality.
9. Prior to commencement of development, section drawings through the site indicating a
finished floor level for the boiler/turbine building relative to a fixed datum on the existing
forestry road on the eastern boundary shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Planning Authority. This shall also include full details of any cut and fill operations
required and the development shall be implemented in accordance with the duly
approved details.
Reason: In order to minimise the overall height of the building relative to surrounding
ground levels in the interests of visual amenity.
10. No development shall commence until the developer has secured a programme for the
management of woodland within 50m of the site boundary (including the selective
felling, management and re-stocking of this area), in accordance with details to be
submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority. Thereafter this area shall be
retained and managed in accordance with the duly approved programme unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to ensure tree management and replacement in the interests of visual
amenity.
11. Prior to commencement of development, a Noise Impact Assessment for the chipping
operation and operation of the plant shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Planning Authority. The levels of noise arising from the operation of the combined heat
and power plant shall not exceed the existing pre-determined background noise levels
at the boundaries of the nearest noise sensitive properties (at Balagowan, Gleann Ban and at An Creachan, Glen Kin) as agreed with the Planning Authority in consultation
with Public Protection. All noise measurements shall be conducted in accordance with
BS4142:1997.
Reason: In order to prevent noise disturbance to nearby properties.
12. Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme for the protection of the nearest
residential properties from noise from the boiler/turbine plant and chipping operation
shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Planning Authority. This scheme
shall include details of any sound insulation to be provided on the western and northern
elevations of the boiler/turbine building to achieve the noise limits specified in condition
11 above, and of any acoustic barriers to the site of the chipping operation. The

Page 111

development shall not be implemented and operated otherwise than in accordance with
the duly approved details.
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the terms of the permission.
13. Prior to the commencement of operation of the combined heat and power plant, a noise
assessment plan shall be submitted and approved by the Planning Authority which shall
include details of the monitoring to be carried out in order to ensure compliance with
conditions 11 and 12 above.
Reason: In order to prevent noise disturbance to nearby properties.
14. Notwithstanding any submitted details, wood chipping shall only take place between the
hours of 0700 and 1800 hours Mondays to Fridays, excluding Scottish public holidays,
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority in consultation with Public
Protection.
Reason: In order to prevent noise disturbance to nearby properties.
15. Notwithstanding any submitted details, vehicle movements, collections and deliveries,
and all other on-site external operations including the handling and loading of
woodchips, to, from and within the site shall be limited to 0700 and 1800 hours Mondays
to Fridays, excluding Scottish public holidays, unless otherwise agreed in writing with
the Planning Authority in consultation with Public Protection.
Reason: In order to prevent noise disturbance to nearby properties.
16. The development shall only operate with the abatement equipment, including the
electrostatic precipitator, in operation. In the event of failure of any abatement plant, the
operator shall cease the combustion process as soon as reasonably practicable and the
process shall not recommence until the abatement plant has returned to full working
order.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and the protection of local air quality.
17. Prior to the commencement of development, details of the wood chip storage
arrangements shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority,
and the development shall not be operated other than in accordance with the duly
approved details. These plans shall make particular reference to the management of
dust on site.
Reason: In the interests of amenity.
18. Prior to work starting on site, full details of any external lighting to be used within the site
and along its access shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning
Authority. Such information shall include full details of the location, type and angle of
direction and wattage of each light, which shall be so positioned and angled to prevent
any glare or light spillage outwith the site boundary. For the purposes of this condition,
any external lighting installations shall be designed to confirm with Scottish Executive
Guidance Note Controlling Light Pollution and Reducing Lighting Energy Consumption
and having regard to the Institute of Lighting Engineers Guidance.
Reason: In order to avoid the potential of light pollution infringing on surrounding land
uses/properties.

Page 112

ADVISORY NOTES TO APPLICANT
3. This planning permission will last until 9 June 2016, unless the development has
been started within that period.
4. In order to comply with Section 27A(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland)
Act 1997, prior to works commencing on site it is the responsibility of the developer to
complete and submit the attached ‘Notice of Initiation of Development’ to the
Planning Authority specifying the date on which the development will start.
5. In order to comply with Section 27B(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland)
Act 1997 it is the responsibility of the developer to submit the attached ‘Notice of
Completion’ to the Planning Authority specifying the date upon which the
development was completed.
6. The applicant was previously advised by Scottish Water (for permission ref.
08/00309/DET) that:
- Due to the size of the development it is necessary for Scottish Water to assess the
impact of this development on our existing infrastructure.
In this regard the
developer is strongly advised to make contact with Scottish Water Development
Planning Team to discuss further.
For the advisory note above, the applicant/developer is advised to contact Scottish
Water directly (Planning and Development Services, 419 Balmore Road, Glasgow
G22 6NU, Susan Miller, Customer Connections, Tel. 0845 601 8855 or at
www.scottishwater.co.uk)
7. The applicant/developer was previously advised (for permission ref. 08/00309/DET)
that in terms of construction and operational noise the Public Protection Service can
use powers under the Control of Pollution Act 1974 (as amended) to control the noise
from construction/operational work.
Prior to the commencement of any construction works, the applicant is requested to
discuss with the Council's Area Environmental Health Manager, Mr. Jo Rains, tel
01369 707120 ext 24
8. The applicant/developer was previously advised by Scottish Environment Protection
Agency (for permission ref. 08/00309/DET) that this activity will not be directly
regulated by SEPA and issues or nuisance arising from this activity will be the
responsibility of the Environmental Health Department of Argyll and Bute Council.
The applicant is provided with Regulatory Advice by SEPA on CAR Regulations and
Pollution Prevention and Waste Management that is included in SEPA's response
dated 9th April 2008.

Page 113

APPENDIX A – RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER: 12/00838/PP (the following
appendix has been replicated from the original permission ref. 08/00309/DET but
updated in terms of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan replacing the Cowal Local Plan).
PLANNING LAND USE AND POLICY ASSESSMENT
A. Settlement Strategy
The 2.60 hectare site forms part of a larger forestry plantation of Dalinlongart Wood that
already contains the Council's Waste Disposal Site. Within the Argyll and Bute Local Plan ,
the site is located within an area of 'Sensitive Countryside' located between an area of
Panoramic Quality to the west and Loch Lomond and The Trossachs National Park area to
the east.
The proposal is subject to adopted structure plan policies STRAT SI 1, STRAT DC5 and
STRAT RE 2 which support the principles of sustainable development, including renewable
forms of electricity generation. There is a general presumption in favour of the development
established by these policies, provided that local environmental considerations are not
compromised.
Policy REN 3 of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan supports biomass projects in locations
outside settlements and areas designated for nature conservation, subject to there not
being unacceptable local environmental, servicing, access or electricity distribution
consequences, and also subject to 'bad neighbour' considerations being satisfied in terms
of policy LP BAD 1.
Accordingly, in terms of the settlement strategy, the proposal would be consistent
with policies STRAT DC5 of the Argyll and Bute Structure Plan, and policy LP REN 3
of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan.
B. Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development
i) Location
The proposal is for the construction of a wood fired combined heat and power plant on 2.6
hectares of land forming part of Tilhill Forestry plantation established in 1974. The site is
owned by Argyll and Bute Council who have agreed a 30 year lease with the applicant.
The site lies to the west of the Council's Dalinlongart Waste Disposal Site operated by
Shanks and adjacent to the access that serves this site leading south from the B836. This
access has been designed to cater for heavy vehicles and is well surfaced with passing
places. The site is close to an extensive network of forest roads allowing fuel delivery to the
site without using public roads. To the west of the site lies a disused waste tip and beyond
that Glen Kin. The Waste Disposal Site and its associated industrial buildings are well
screened by forestry plantation from a number of surrounding vantage points. The site lies
halfway between the minor settlement of Clachaig and the small town settlement of
Sandbank although the site would not be visible from these areas due to topography and
dense forestry plantations. The nearest residential building is a single property Balagowan
in a sheltered location some 600m away on the opposite side of the B836 road.
ii) Nature and Design of Proposed Development
The wood fuel power plant development comprises a boiler and turbine house measuring
32.2m by 21.44m in area and 21m high. This will be finished externally in a combination of
recessive coloured cladding and glazing and will be served by associated cooling plant
(10m x 5m in area and 16m high) and a 30m high stack. The plant will utilise moving grate

Page 114

technology to dry then combust timber, linked to a condensing steam turbine. The process
utilises a confined combustion chamber and low risk technology already proven in use in
Europe and Scandinavia. Electricity will be exported via a connection to the existing 33KV
overhead power line 300m to the east, which would be the subject of a separate Electricity
Act application. Only 20% of the application site is to be occupied by structures and their
associated hardstandings so that the remainder of the site will be porous/semi-porous
surfaces. Sustainable Urban Drainage Measures are proposed with the intention of limiting
surface water run-off to close to pre-development values.
C. Natural Environment
The site is not subject to any nature conservation designation and is therefore acceptable
in principle for biomass energy production in terms of structure plan policy STRAT RE 2
and local plan policy LP REN 3. Given that the development site is surrounded by
plantation woodland where woodland to the south has recently been felled but will be
restocked, and access is already available direct from an existing road, the proposal does
not have any adverse consequences for nature conservation interests. Scottish Natural
Heritage did not previously object to the proposal.
D. Built Environment – Listed Buildings, Designed Landscape
The development will be located south of an area of dense forested plantation adjacent to
the exiting Waste Disposal Site. An area of plantation woodland to the south of the
development site has recently been clearfelled but will be restocked. Due to topography
and presence of similar forestry plantations in the surrounding area, the site is well
screened from existing settlements and any historic or important traditional buildings e.g.
Clachaig Conservation Village, Ballochyle House, Invereck and Benmore Gardens. There
are no sites designated for historic significance in the vicinity such as Scheduled Ancient
Monuments or Listed Buildings.
West of Scotland Archaeology Service previously commented that no known
archaeological issues are raised as the site is located within an area of forestry plantation
that is likely to have compromised the survival of any archaeological material.
E. Landscape Character
The site lies on the edge of the Upland Forest Moor Mosaic landscape character type at
the foot of rising ground dominated by the presence of large-scale forestry plantations,
where ongoing harvesting operations have cleared large tracts of the high moorland
slopes. Popular road routes (A815, B836 and A880) and surrounding settlements are
shielded from the site by the effect of intervening topography, generally characterised by
forested (or recently harvested) slopes.
The original intention to 'key-hole' the site within existing coniferous woodland was to allow
suitable screening to be retained around the edges of the site. The existing Waste Disposal
Site and associated industrial buildings immediately adjacent and uphill of the application
site have successfully blended into the surrounding landscape with only very limited visual
impact, usually from higher vantage points. Given the siting and backdrop of forested
slopes with low impact buildings and plant and existing overhead power lines and pylons, it
is anticipated that these will conspire to limit the overall impact of the development on the
wider landscape. It is unlikely that the presence of a tall building and its associated
chimney will be noticeable in this wooded context from Strath Eck or from the National Park
area. Management of the surrounding land as continuous cover with no clearfelling to the
north of the site will assist in the assimilation of the plant in its surroundings as will
colouring of the plant and equipment to help it merge with its forested backdrop. Scottish

Page 115

Natural Heritage previously expressed no objections to the proposed development in
respect of adverse landscape consequences.
Accordingly, the proposal would be consistent with policies STRAT DC8 of the
Argyll and Bute Structure Plan, and policy LP ENV 10 of the Argyll and Bute Local
Plan.
F.
Road Network, Access and Parking
The biomass boiler is rated at 5.4MWe and will process approximately 7.5 wet tonnes of
wood chips per hour. The plant will consume 60,000 tonnes of timber per year sourced
from a 50 km radius supplied predominately from local forests using the forest road
network. It is anticipated that this will save up to 200,000 lorry miles per year transporting
timber from Cowal to the Central Belt. The plant will consume a mix of wood chips from in
forest chipping operations and round wood which will be chipped on site.
The close proximity and existing network of forest roads have influenced site selection.
Timber would be delivered to the plant using the existing road serving the waste disposal
site that passes the application site. As mentioned, this road is well surfaced and designed
with passing places. No road improvements are required. Parking and manoeuvring space
for vehicles will be provided on site. Deliveries of timber would be restricted to between the
hours of 0700 and 1800 Monday - Friday only and are expected to amount to 9 vehicles
per day. This additional traffic is not of significance either in terms of the existing volume of
traffic using the local road network.
G.
Infrastructure
The site is to be connected to the potable water supply. An indicative detailed drainage
plan in respect of surface water, foul and effluent drainage was submitted to SEPA and
Public Protection. Electricity will be exported by way of an overhead pole mounted line to a
nearby 33kv route, subject to a separate Electricity Act consent.
H.

Other Key Policy Matters

Pollution issues
Air quality - Particle emissions from the stack are to be less than 50mg/m3 with the use of
an electrostatic precipitator to remove dust particles from flue gases. NOx levels will be
less than 400mg/m3 and CO less than 370mg/m3. Emission monitoring equipment is to be
installed to ensure that design levels are adhered to. Ash production will be via a water
based system and quantities will be low (around 500kg/day) due to the efficiency of the
combustion process. Subject to SEPA licensing, this potash will be sold as forestry or
agricultural fertiliser.
Based on submitted data, and that the agent has confirmed that the maximum capacity of
the project will be <20MW gross thermal input, the plant will be subject to Clean Air Act and
will require a chimney height assessment including a dispersion modelling exercise, and
conditions to that effect are recommended.
Noise - The plant will operate 24hrs/day with deliveries and on-site external operations
being restricted to the normal working day. The maximum noise outside the plant building
will be 55dB(A) at 100 metres from the plant building. (Noise levels of a passing car
travelling at 60km/h at 7m distance is 70dB(A), a typical office environment generates
60dB(A). The presence of woodland surrounding the plant will have a mitigating and
dampening effect on this level of noise. Some chipping can generate noise levels of up to
85dB(A) immediately adjacent to the chipping unit but such an impact will be limited by a

Page 116

restriction placed on timing of such activity. Intermittent noise from the delivery of wood will
be limited to normal working hours.
While Public Protection previously had no objection in principle, conditions were
recommended in respect of noise from plant and operation, restriction of operating times,
dust, combustion and lighting.
Bad neighbour considerations - In view of the location of the nearest dwelling 600 metres
away and the fact that the existing waste disposal unit has an 'industrial' presence in the
landscape it was considered that the particular ‘keyholing’ of the plant within the plantation
woodland and surrounding topography will assist in reducing and absorbing any potential
environmental and visual impact. However, subject to mitigation measures being
incorporated in construction, management measures being required in operation, and
monitoring measures being required to demonstrate compliance with the parameters set by
conditions, the development will not amount to a 'bad neighbour' in terms of adopted local
plan policy LP BAD 1.
Energy policy considerations
The power plant is proposed to have an installed capacity of 5.4MW, with a net output of
5.0MW, once the energy consumed by the process has been taken into account. It is
expected to have over 90% productivity, compared with wind turbines, which only generate
electricity for around 30% of the time. The plant is estimated to produce 40,000MWh of
electricity per annum with a CO2 saving of 15,000 tonnes per annum (450,000 tonnes over
the lifetime of the project). This site forms part of a larger national strategy which aims to
establish up to 10 sites within Scotland; including one to serve Kintyre, another to serve
North Argyll, and one to serve Arran. Planning permission was recently granted for a
similar site within Mid-Argyll at Achnabreck.
Government energy policy has set a renewable target of 31% by 2010 and 50% by 2020.
In view of disproportionate reliance to date on wind power, the government is currently
reviewing the Renewable Supply Obligation (RSO) with consideration being given to the
expansion of biomass generation. The development would entail environmental benefits in
terms of carbon savings, reduced road haulage of timber, and use of currently discarded
forestry by-product i.e. dead wood, small diameter material and brash.
Economic considerations
Currently, transportation is a major cost for the forestry industry, absorbing up to 60% of
the timber price. Forecast increased production in future years and growth in the recycling
of wood and paper will have consequences for the economics of low value wood sourced
from locations remote from the point of processing or consumption. Local use of timber
minimising transport will cut costs and improve returns.
The total investment proposed in this project amounts to £12 million. Biomass is unique
among renewable energy sources as it will help sustain local employment. This project is
estimated to be capable of supporting 30 direct/indirect jobs.
I.

Conclusion
Local Plan policy LP REN 3 supports biomass electricity generation in forms, scales and
locations where it will help to sustain local businesses and economies, unless there are
unacceptable environmental, servicing, electricity distribution or access consequences
including cumulative impacts, effects on communities, tourist routes, or tourist facilities or

Page 117

attraction, and residential amenity. Principal considerations in this case are in terms of
Policy ENV 19 (development setting, layout and design) and BAD 1 (bad neighbour
consequences in terms of noise and air quality).
While SEPA and Public Protection previously had no objections in principle, safeguarding
conditions were recommended in respect of operating hours and vehicle movements,
design of stack in terms of air quality, noise assessment, external lighting, construction
method statement, waste management statement and SuDS system. Additional conditions
are recommended in respect of a suitable permanent screening of the site, section details
and materials.
In terms of design the plant buildings are of a low impact design where materials are
proposed to blend with the surroundings, and raise no serious concerns in visual terms.
With regards to the character of the application site and surrounding developed land and
uses and their associated relationship with the proposed building, the proposed
development is regarded as consistent with the adopted structure and local plan polices
quoted above.

Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank

213400

214000

Page 119

214600

8m

A 8 15

Caravan Park

1

Dr

ain

5. 0m

4

In vereck

6

Cattl e Grid

k
Trac

In ve

Issues

rec

k Co

tt a

Orchard
Cottage

ge

Cattl e Grid

Invereck Gatehouse

9. 1m

in

Shi al ard

Dra

Eildon
Cai rnbaan

Dra

in

8. 2m

The Coopers

Tra

ck

Orchard Park

Li ttl

e
Ea
c

Shin gle

h ai

g

R iv

er

Sinks

Track

7. 3m

le

Line

Pipe

Dr

n
ai

Shin gle

Bu
r

ETL

682400

i ng

682400

Sh

lag
ow
an

n

2

Dra

1:250,000

1

in

in gle
Sh

Dal inlongart Cottage

Drain

9. 3m

Caladh

Ballochyle

n
ai

Ballochyle Steading

Dr

Drain

Na Tri

Glea nn

Dr

Th e O ld
D air y

ain

Ballochyle Farm

11.0m
Pond

Dalinlongart
1 to 5

Holy Loch
Farm
Cottage

To m n
a n Ra
gh

LB
MP
B8

11.8m

36

11.3m

Dr

Ri ver Gau ge

Tr

ac

k

Drain

Glenbahn

ain

Drain

Weir
Ancreachan
B8

36

Sinks

14. 2m

A
8 15

Ea c haig

91

Little

Tra ck

Riv e r

94

95

90

36

19. 4m
4

B8

86
85

98

heep Pens

1

99
82

78

23m
79

od
Wo
an
ow
lag
a
B

107

3

81

74
10

73

19m

4

63
69

Sandhaven
Tom nan Ragh

62
11
4

Buri al Groun d

68
60

47
59

TCB

17m

6. 5m
31

Issues

45

Balagowan

10

75

48

Dr

Col lects

n
ai

32

53

Spreads

A

8

15

25

52

Issues

24

13

37

El
Sub Sta

15

40

11
10

Issues

ETL

9

Issues

8

Dalinlongart
Wood

Drain

681600

12
16

681600

Sheep Dip

Application Site

32m

Issues

29m

Issues

WB

Issues

Refuse Tip

Pond
Dalinlo ngart Hill

Issues

Issues

Refuse
Tip
Issues

(Dis)

680800

Gle 680800
nk
in
Bu
rn

Dalinlongart Hill

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
2009. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and
Allt
na C
ric̀h
may lead to prosecution or
Civil
Proceedings. OS License No.100023368, 2009.
e
213400

214000

214600

Location Plan relative to
Application Ref: 12/00838/PP
Date: 08.05.12

Scale: 1:10,000

°

Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 121
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 13
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 12

Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 125
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 13
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted

Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank

